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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT E=EH&E

Lin Tsz Fung
M F g

Chairman /&

Dear Shareholders, BRI M

For and on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the ZARAZENRKERICOEREGRAT([EAQT] - &
“Directors”) of Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited (the “Company”, RHMBARGHEIAEE ) ESe([EEE])
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am please to present  RAMARRIRE([RERDIREAEEHZ-Z
the Group’s annual results for the financial year ended 31 March  —=F=/8=+—H I BFE ([ @& BE
2023 (the “Financial Year under Review") to the shareholders of [ |) 7 FE 245 o

the Company (the “Shareholders”).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEH&E

During the Financial Year under Review, with challenges in the
business environment, in 2023 the economy of Hong Kong is
gradually recovering from the COVID-19 outbreak. With the
resumption of normal travel between Hong Kong and Mainland
China, the number of visitor arrivals to Hong Kong has moderately
returned closer to pre-epidemic levels, leading to the recovery of the
local retail industry. The Group’s management continued to closely
monitor the market situation and timely adjust its product and
marketing strategies. It also formulated an effective sales strategy,
sustaining both sales and profit growth during the year. The Group
has been exercising stringent control over procurement costs and
further diversifying its product range by sourcing a diverse range of
products from suppliers all over the globe to provide products of
“Best Quality” and “Best Price” to customers.

This year, we welcomed China Merchants Hoi Tung Trading
Company Limited (the “"CMHT"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Merchants Group Limited, as a potential major
shareholder. Along with their strong presence in Mainland China
and internationally, the Group’s management believe that this
partnership will enable us to expand our global procurement efforts
and further strengthen the brands of “Best Mart 360° ({&§:360°)"
and “FoodVille”. Looking ahead, the Group will continue to focus
on its long-term development goals of maintaining a foothold
in Hong Kong and expanding into the Greater China region to
inject new impetus into the Group for its future growth. The
management is confident that the Group will be able to maintain
its competitiveness in the market with its deeply-rooted business
foundation.

Going forward, the Group will continue to closely monitor various
factors and developments and the management is well positioned
to boost development of the retail business. To further elevate
the Group's profitability, we are also committed to enhancing
operational efficiency and further strengthening cost control
measures. Through the in-depth cooperation with CMHT, the
Group is confident to maintain the upward momentum of our
financial performance, keeping pace with the times and improve
constantly to maintain our leading position in Hong Kong leisure
food retail market. 2023 marks the 10th anniversary of the Group
and our management team strives to lead the Company towards
new heights and achieve key milestones, as well as further establish
it as a premier and high-quality brand.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE#H&E

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank the Group’s
management team and employees for their effort and loyalty
in contributing to the development of the Group. My gratitude
also goes to our Shareholders, customers, suppliers and business
partners for their continued concern, support and trust.

Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited
Lin Tsz Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 5 June 2023

RABRREF S BHAKEEEEFNRET
UASBEBRMTEOENFEH - I BB
BRARPIHER - FP - HERMEHEEHF - &
AP — B ARMBD » SRS

B m360ZRAR A A
MFig
E

BB —E-=FARH

Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited & ®360ZE R ER 2 7
Annual Report 2022/2023 F£ERE



CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT 1TEER B E

Hui Chi Kwan

C.E.O. 7TE#2 %

Dear Shareholders,

With the epidemic further under control, Hong Kong has gradually
resumed the normal travel between Hong Kong and other regions.
The Hong Kong government launched various concessions and
promotional activities, organized and supported a number of mega
events and international convention and exhibition events, to attract
travellers to visit Hong Kong again and accelerate the recovery of
Hong Kong’s economy. At the time when the COVID-19 was still
raging, the Group responded quickly to the market changes and
adjusted its business strategies, which included adjusting its product
mix and optimizing retail shop distribution to meet the needs of the
local community, resulting in a strong growth for both sales and
profit of the Group.

B AR -
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’'S STATEMENT {TEU AR $R&

During the Financial Year under Review, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$2,305,907,000, representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 16.3%. Profit attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$200,997,000,
representing a significant increase of approximately 83.1%;
amounting an increase of approximately 66.7% if government
subsidies of approximately HK$17,996,000 were excluded. Under
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group greatly values the contribution of
each and every staff. We believe that working shoulder-to-shoulder
can lead to better financial results for the Group.

OVERVIEW

As a leading leisure food supplier in Hong Kong, the Group adopts
a dual-brand strategy by operating two retail brands which are “Best
Mart 360° ({f&5a360°)"”, a common food brand, and “FoodVille”,
a global gourmet brand. As at 31 March 2023, the total number
of the Group’s retail stores increased to 154. During the year, the
Group proactively expanded the footprint of its physical stores. In
addition to renting larger retail spaces, the Group has also gradually
optimised its existing stores in line with the diversification of its
product mix to enhance brand image, as well as providing a more
comfortable shopping environment to customers.

During the Financial Year under Review, the Group adhered to
its global procurement policy by sourcing more high quality and
affordable products worldwide in response to market needs. The
Group is committed to building stable relationships with global
suppliers and continues to identify new suppliers and supply sources
to enrich its products range and product portfolio. To strengthen
customer loyalty and improve the Group’s overall profitability and
exclusive brand image, the Group further developed its private label
products during the year. During the Financial Year under Review,
sales derived from private label products recorded approximately
HK$346,352,000, an increase of approximately 7.0% year-on-year
and constituted approximately 15.0% to the total revenue.

REBEMEFEFE  KXEBHESKALD
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT TR IRE

During the Financial Year under Review, the Group introduced
CMHT as a potential major shareholder of the Company, which is
a comprehensive trading company covering food, transportation,
and commodity and with subsidiaries in 10 cities in Mainland China
and 7 branches overseas. Looking forward to the partnership with
CMHT, the Group can gain strategic support and crucial resources
to facilitate sustained growth and maximize synergies, particularly
the development in Mainland China and overseas.

PROSPECT

Looking ahead, in view of Hong Kong’s economy achieving full
recovery, the Group will actively seek suitable opportunities to
expand store network of our major retail brand “Best Mart 360°
(f8An360°)" and global gourmet store “FoodVille” in Hong Kong,
Macau and Mainland China to continue reinforcing the Group’s
core competitiveness and accelerate expansion.

The Group will persist in offering a wider range of products at
competitive prices and optimizing its product mix by adopting
global procurement strategy to cover more food and essentials
fulfilling local community demands and expectations. In the
meantime, the Group is dedicated to diversifying selections and
actively developing more private label products to boost customer
loyalty and overall sales.

Looking forward to the support of CMHT, the Group will accelerate
its expansion in the Mainland China by exploring the Group's future
further development opportunity. We believe that the business
synergy with our potential major shareholder CMHT in B2B area will
drive our Group's development of the Greater Bay Area.

Finally, we would like to express special thanks to not only our
Shareholders for their continued support on the Company, but also
the Group’s management team and all levels of staff and employees
for their dedicated contributions.

Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited
Hui Chi Kwan
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 5 June 2023
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BESTMART o

JI

Best Mart delivers the ‘Best Price
to obtain the “BESt Quality”

& gn==
REE. =" EE,

Established in 2013, Best Mart 360° now operates 154 stores in prestigious
shopping areas across Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China. With the
mission of providing products with the “Best Quality” and “Best Price”, we
insist on developing a global procurement network with overseas suppliers,
providing an enjoyable shopping experience for our customers.

BER360° K R2013F - E5 B R ERSEBRAMBYIEFRI154HE
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Global
Procurement
IREE IR A8

The Group procures its products of
approximately 1,230 brands and
around 3,770 SKUs supplied from
various parts of the world. Our main
sources are primarily from Europe,
Us, Japan, Korea and Vietnam, and
importers based in Hong Kong.
We strive to offer a product mix of
exceptional quality, trending style
and broad appeal at competitive
prices.

EEBNRE2ERZERR(EZ AR
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Packaged
Confectioneries bakery products

and snacks
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Nuts and Biscuits and
dried fruits pastries

Cereals and milk S | 0es and

= = wine

1 oodles Chilled and
and groceries

N frozen food
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Exclusive Products & ¥ & &



Retail Network
TENE

The Group continues to adopt a dual-brand strategy, consistently
seeking suitable opportunities to expand the store network
of its key retail brand, “Best Mart 360°" and global gourmet
store, “FoodVille”. As of 31 March 2023, the Group operated
a total of 154 chain retail stores, strategically located in areas
with heavy pedestrian flow in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China. These locations meet the demands of different customer
segments for quality food products. The “Best Mart 360°"
brand focuses on serving residential areas and expanding its
store network coverage, while “FoodVille” targets large and
medium-to-high-end shopping malls in Hong Kong as well as
stores with larger area and locations with higher customer traffic
and stronger consumer spending power. With the continuous
expansion of store networks, the Group’s turnover is growing
steadily.

SHESETEMRRE  THSHEERSHRETEE
ZEME [BMm360°] UKBKEBRME [FoodVille] - 7
2023F3A310 - KEA AR T 14MTEER - BHEE -

RPIR PR ARGHENEKRGE - URE TRBEEREE
EEMmBFER - Hh [Em360°] TERMBEEET INEE
TERFAREY  BREHEIDHELE - ZR [FoodVille
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The dual-brand strategy meets the needs

of different customer groups. Meanwhile,
continuously optimizing existing stores
provides customers with an exquisite
environment.
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Corporate
Responsibility
tERRE

Over the years, we have been actively responding to social needs by involving in social affairs, organizing volunteer teams,
and participating in community activities.

ZER - ZMAEE2EMSER  ABELETH  BER2EMRES  OEMESFE -
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[AEERE HMIMGE | KEEREE

“Nothing is impossible. We can do it”
campus reward program

EISE%_'U\ g 350

BEST MART 360° is dedicated to social
responsibility and places significant emphasis
on fostering the growth and development of
the younger generation. For the first time, the
Group has collaborated with a school to launch
an annual care project called the “Nothing is
impossible. We Can Do It” reward program, which
spanned over six months. The program aimed
to empower students to become independent
learners, cultivate positive values, strive to achieve
goals, and give back to society. Over 730 students
from the school enthusiastically participated in
the program, and BEST MART 360° awarded 363
students who completed the school’s certification
projects.

BER360—EEOME TASHFE—RKAOKKERE SR NESKREEARYLFNEEHETEE [ LEETRE &M
MEE | EE:TE > SERASAATETRIMEE EESTEEES  SHEKBE OE4E - 2RO730824 K
28 - MBM360°THTKERFITHREER B4 - KB H363EEE -

BOR « BEE « 20iRKREEE
Celebrating the National Day & the Anniversary of
Hong Kong SAR Establishment with Love -

Gift Bags for Low-Income Families

To celebrate the National Day and the 25th anniversary
of Hong Kong SAR Establishment's return, BEST MART
360° donated a total of 2,400 gift bags to grassroots
families and the elderly in July and October, with a
total value exceeding HKD200,000. The gift bags were
distributed in various districts of Hong Kong, Kowloon,
and the New Territories by several members of the
Legislative Council. BEST MART 360° volunteers also  &ESEE & [EI15E25FF - E5H360°9 AIR7 A K& 10 A #£15/#42,400
visited the beneficiaries in their homes, delivering food, AN TFHEHBREMES @ £AEBE20E  WERZZ L 828
oil, and epidemic prevention supplies, while engaging in =~ R&EE « NERFTRZEIKE - BR360%E LHKFE LERFTEA
conversations with them, showing care and concern for = XA EHER R @ WEZRILZ R - B0 REERMFE L
their living conditions. JETBIL ©
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Donatlon of Warm Meals and Gift Bags to the Elderly

In December, the volunteer team of BEST MART 360°,
in collaboration with the Free Methodist Church of
Hong Kong, organized the “Love Warms the Heart”
volunteer activity. BEST MART 360° volunteers not only
distributed food boxes but also personally packed gift
bags to give to 200 elderly people, bringing hope as

well as warmth and care during the cold winter.

BEf360°E THEREMFEELMN12 A8 3604
[I2 8% LOVE LOVE % T)E#) - 185360°% T MEIR
e THFEEEIZEET2002EE  FE
fERL T RRZERE /MR -

Zi360° x LA R TERES
BEST MART 360° x Pei Ho Counterparts Joint Campaign
to Spread Warmth

BEST MART 360° collaborated with the social
enterprise Pei Ho Counterparts to provide food boxes,
meal coupons, and gift bags to grassroots individuals
across various districts in Hong Kong, including
elderly living alone, homeless individuals, and low-
income families. In total, over 2,000 people benefited
from these donations. The BEST MART 360° volunteer
team also personally visited the Sham Shui Po district
to distribute goods to the elderly and homeless
individuals, bringing care and warmth to them.

B 360 B BA NI ARIT IM2E 2 @i E
%Aiﬁué%%%% BRENEEBRESTKE
CERAEMER - AHE2,000AFE - BMR
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Awards and

recognitions
BIHRRE

The Group has been proactively participating in social charity events, and has received various social honours and
recognitions.

SE-BEUXRERIB2EMENDEE BETRNTEREBRERE

[ T Tee—

_ @360

RB2032%12H 108 AT AR
T T, Miove Lovel
AEEEE L REANE

nitnm

‘| e

\‘, Lreees B0
e b i A
onmeniol Excele s e
Cetificate of Merl o
ana
“RuseaE {58,360 7 B3 ]
: et 30 ks 14
P
wmamaman
o Sl
80 e
0 o e o B

428 QUALITY TOURISM SERVICES
ST EERERY

=il

Member& &
IALITY
TOURISM SERVICES

ASSOCIATION
RN AR T

Being awarded as a Quality Tourism Services
Merchant for seven consecutive years by
providing best quality products and services

BETFREABERERBES
R Em R EE R

As a member of the Quality Tourism
Services Association, the Group is commit-
ted to providing high levels of services to
tourists

REEREREHBEKE - ARk
iR RKFZ IR

Recognized as an outstanding Hong Kong
company in the largest scale of consumer
brand survey in China, and was awarded
Consumer’s Most Favourable Hong Kong
Brands — Golden Award

RPBEEAEBEERERD
B REABEESAT  REFE
HIEDBRE

As a member of the “No Fakes Pledge”
Scheme, the Group is committed to
providing genuine products to ensure
quality of the products

A TEREEHRZE] sHElmEs
B8 AHREHESH®  BRE
mEE

Jm

/

To contribute to the building of a harmonious society, the Group participated in the Caring Company Programme and was
recognized as a business organization which not only demonstrated good corporate citizenship but also actively promotes

social development

SE2HEHRARBAETITEXSATRRFEEARBENEERE  #PH SRR - AETARULE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY B #8#1 2=

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+-BL%FE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=f —T--F C—T-—F —T-TF -—T-hHE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FEL FAET FEL THT
Revenue WA 2,305,907 1,983,526 1,627,891 1,230,437 1,288,479
Gross Profit E7 817,263 667,654 520,154 411,492 434,440
Operating Profit R 248,921 141,493 101,668 25,374 78,820
Profit and total comprehensive Z& 2 F#EH AELRFIR
income attributable to ZHEKGARE
owners of the Company 200,669 109,912 81,449 12,100 59,728
- As a percentage of revenue  —{FUWAB DL 8.7% 5.5% 5.0% 1.0% 4.6%
Total Assets BEHAE 937,627 900,153 821,202 689,829 507,669
Total Liabilities SEER 458,915 462,110 453,071 383,147 138,087
Earnings per share attributable A2 FHEAEEER
to owners of the Company 27
- Basic and diluted (HK cents) — B s (L) 20.1 11.0 8.1 1.2 74
Dividend Per Share BRERE
~ Interim (HK cents) — R EACEAL) 8.0 15 2.0 NILEE NIL{E
—Final (HK cents) — REICGEAL) & 2.5 6.0 NIL&E
Equity attributable to owners AR FHEHE A LR
of the Company 478,712 438,043 368,131 369,582 306,682

* Please refer to page 35 “Dividend”. * B2HEIEIRE]
REVENUE (H K$’'000)
WA (F#ET)
2020 1,230,437
2019 1,288,479
0 400,000 800,000 1,200,000 1,600,000 2,000,000 2,400,000
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B Esmm R o4

The Group is a leisure food retailer operating chain retail stores
under the brands “Best Mart 360° (&2 5:360°)" and “FoodVille”
in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China. The Group offers
wide selection of imported pre-packaged leisure foods and other
grocery products principally from overseas, which can be broadly
categorised into (i) chocolates and confectioneries; (ii) nuts and
dried fruits; (i) packaged bakery products and snacks; (iv) biscuits
and pastries; (v) cereals and milk; (vi) beverages and wine; (vii)
rice, noodles and groceries; (viii) frozen and chilled food; and (ix)
other products, such as personal care products and daily items. It
is the Group's business objective to offer “Best Quality” and “Best
Price” products to customers through continuous efforts on global
procurement with a mission to provide comfortable shopping
environment and pleasurable shopping experience to customers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Financial Year under Review, Hong Kong's economy
continued to face difficulties. In early 2022, the COVID-19 variant
Omicron broke out, ushering in the fifth wave of the epidemic in
Hong Kong. In order to control the infection of the coronavirus,
Hong Kong has re-implemented strict anti-epidemic measures, such
as vaccine permits, compulsory quarantine measures and continued
border closures. Industries such as tourism and retail are the first to
bear the brunt, weakening personal consumption expenditures, and
the market continues to be full of uncertainties. However, despite
the challenging business environment in Hong Kong, the Hong
Kong retail market was still dominated by local demand. The Group
still actively faced challenges, including rapidly adjusting product
structure and strengthening the supply of basic food products such
as cereals, noodles, canned food, milk, frozen and refrigerated
food, etc., to meet the daily needs of consumers in the local
community. As a result, the Group still recorded considerable sales
growth in the first half of the Financial Year under Review.
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In the second half of 2022, the COVID-19 epidemic was gradually
brought under control, and driven by the Consumption Voucher
Scheme and festive atmosphere, the retail market gradually
recovered. Entering 2023, the global COVID-19 epidemic has
further stabilized. Hong Kong’s economy and retail market has
gradually returned to normal as well. In February 2023 when Hong
Kong resumed normal travel customs clearance with other regions,
the number of tourist arrivals rebounded, driving the recovery
of the retail industry and showing clear signs of improvement.
According to statistics from the Census and Statistics Department,
for the whole of 2022, the value of total retail sales decreased by
0.9% year-on-year; while in March 2023, the value and volume
of total retail sales increased by 40.9% and 39.4% year-on-year
respectively. In addition, according to the monthly statistics released
by the Hong Kong Tourism Board, the number of tourists visiting
Hong Kong in February 2023 exceeded one million for the first time
in a single month, far exceeding two times the total number of last
year. Hence, the business environment in Hong Kong has gradually
stabilized, and the atmosphere in the retail market has continued to
improve. The Group continued to adjust product mix and optimize
existing stores to provide customers with a more comfortable
shopping environment, successfully grasped the opportunities
brought by the market recovery, and achieved double-digit sales
growth in the Financial Year under Review.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recorded revenue
of approximately HK$2,305,907,000, representing an increase
of approximately 16.3% from approximately HK$1,983,526,000
for the year ended 31 March 2022. Profit attributable to owners
of the Company was approximately HK$200,997,000 (2022:
approximately HK$109,804,000), representing a significant increase
of approximately 83.1%. Even though the overall retail sales
were weak in the first half of the Financial Year under Review,
the Group actively faced challenges and responded to changes in
public demand with rapid product structure adjustments resulting
in the Group maintaining considerable growth. In the second half
of the Financial Year under Review, the business environment in
Hong Kong gradually stabilized, and the retail market continued
to improve. Taking advantage of this momentum, the Group
continued to implement a steady expansion strategy. The total
number of stores increased by 16 for the Financial Year under
Review, and the Group has been actively taking measures according
to current conditions to improve cost-effectiveness. During the
Financial Year under Review, the Group recorded an approximately
2.5% growth in same store sales performance (2022: approximately
7.3% growth). Such decrease in growth was mainly attributable
to the high base of the financial year ended 31 March 2022. In
addition, the Group has received approximately HK$17,996,000 in
subsidies from the Hong Kong Government under the Employment
Support Scheme the Financial Year under Review, resulting in an
impressive growth in both the Group’s annual revenue and profit.

The Group's gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2023 was
approximately HK$817,263,000 and the gross profit for the year
ended 31 March 2022 was approximately HK$667,654,000,
For the
Financial Year under Review, the Group’s gross profit margin was

representing an increase of approximately 22.4%.

approximately 35.4%, an increase of approximately 1.7 percentage
points compared with approximately 33.7% for the year ended 31
March 2022. The increase in gross profit margin depends on the
Group's efforts to optimize product structure and effectively adjust
sales and marketing strategies.
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2

Chain Retail Stores

The Group adopts a dual-brand strategy by operating two retail
brands, namely “Best Mart 360° (f&§2360°)", a common food
brand, and “FoodVille”, a global gourmet brand. The Group
strives to offer “Quality” and “Better Price” products to customers
through efforts on global procurement, satisfying the needs of
different customer segments. As at 31 March 2023, the Group
operated a total of 154 chain retail stores (31 March 2022:
138 stores), comprising 150 “Best Mart 360" stores and four
“"FoodVille” stores (31 March 2022: 135 stores and three stores,
respectively). In terms of geographical coverage, as at 31 March
2023, the Group operated 145 stores, seven stores and two stores
in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China, respectively (31 March
2022: 130 stores, six stores and two stores, respectively). During
the Financial Year under Review, the Group opened 26 new retail
stores (including 25 in Hong Kong, one in Macau), and closed 10
stores upon expiration of their respective lease terms in line with
the adjustment in the Group’s store opening strategy. Over 80% of
the stores operated by the Group are situated in local business area
communities or mostly at shopping malls in residential districts).
Rental expenses (cash basis) for retail stores were approximately
HK$220,230,000 for the year ended 31 March 2023, representing
an increase of approximately 3.8% as compared with approximately
HK$212,136,000 for the financial year ended 31 March 2022.
The ratio of rental expense of retail stores to sales revenue was
approximately 9.6%, which was lower than that of approximately
10.7% for the financial year ended 31 March 2022.
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2

Employees

Employees are crucial to the sustainable development of the
Group’s business, and in particular, front-line staff represents an
important component of the labour force of the Group's retail
business. The Group maintained a steady pace and gradually
accelerated the expansion during the Financial Year under Review.
Therefore, the staff costs were higher due to the increase in the
number of employees. As at 31 March 2023, the total number
of employees of the Group was 1,121 (excluding five Directors)
and comprising of 813 full-time employees and 308 part-
time employees, while the total number of employees of the
Group as at 31 March 2022 was 937, (excluding five Directors)
and comprising of 733 full-time employees and 204 part-time
employees. The staff cost (excluding the Directors’ emoluments)
for the year ended 31 March 2023 amounted to approximately
HK$203,338,000, representing an increase of approximately 12.1%
from approximately HK$181,335,000 for the year ended 31 March
2022. The staff costs (excluding the Directors’ emoluments) for
the year ended 31 March 2023 represented approximately 8.8%
of the Group’s revenue for the Financial Year under Review, while
the staff costs (excluding the Directors’ emoluments) for the year
ended 31 March 2022 represented approximately 9.1% of the
Group's revenue for the last corresponding year, amongst which
the staff costs of frontline and warehouse staff (including basic
salary, bonus and other benefits) represented approximately 6.9%
and 7.2% of the revenue for each of the financial years ended
31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, respectively. In order to
retain talented and skilled labour force and suitably incentivise the
Group's employees so as to increase staff cohesion and loyalty, the
Group regularly reviews and refreshes its employee benefit scheme
and remuneration packages with reference to the supply in the
labour market and the trend of labour costs and according to the
individual performance of the employees.
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The Products

During the Financial Year under Review, the Group continued
its global procurement policy and mission by sourcing a broad
spectrum of products worldwide to meet and satisfy market trend
and customers’ diverse demand. To better cater to the needs of
the local community and the international travellers, in addition
to further strengthening the supply of basic foodstuffs such as
cereals, noodles, canned food, milk, frozen and chilled food,
daily necessities and basic groceries, the Group also continued to
enhance the sale of its private labels in retail stores, including nuts
and dried fruits, organic cereals, wet tissues, snacks and other
products, offering consumers a more diversified range of selections.

For the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Group procured
quality products from suppliers overseas and brand owners or
importers in Hong Kong and sold a total of about 3,770 SKUs of
products (for the financial year ended 31 March 2022: about 3,560
SKUs) to all over the world, with product origins mainly from,
among others, Japan, Korea, the United States, Europe, Australia,
Vietnam and Thailand, as well as other Asia-Pacific countries. The
Group sourced the most popular and trendy food products from
every country or region to offer a globally-diversified, multi-brand
and multi-category selection for every customer.

During the Financial Year under Review, the Group continued to
actively develop private label products that allowed the Group
to better control costs and exercise higher level of quality control
on its products, capturing pricing opportunities and on the
other hand further uplifted the Group’s brand awareness and
strengthened customers’ loyalty. During the Financial Year under
Review, sales derived from private label products amounted to
approximately HK$346,352,000 (for the year ended 31 March
2022: approximately HK$323,556,000), representing an increase of
approximately 7.0% from that of last financial year.

As at 31 March 2023, the total inventory of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$244,219,000 (2022: approximately
HK$217,969,000), representing a year-on-year increase of 12.0%.
The increase in the Group’s total inventory was mainly in line with
the expansion of stores as well as the changes of the product
structures and the Group has been implementing effective and
stringent inventory control management throughout the year.

Em
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Membership Scheme and Marketing and Promotional Activities

Given that the retail business is a consumer-driven business,
substantial efforts by the Group are placed in developing and
reinforcing its customer base. Accordingly, the Group established a
membership scheme since April 2015 to promote consumer loyalty,
stimulate sales and expand customer base. In order to further
deepen customer stickiness and expand customers’ coverage, the
Group used big data analysis and reformulated from time to time
its marketing strategies to launch a new three-tier membership
scheme and a second-generation mobile app in 2020. The new
membership scheme helps to elevate brand positioning and market
recognition, and the membership rewards have been fully optimized
and enhanced, with more member benefits such as multiple
items purchase stamp reward, special offers for selected products
and access to latest market information. Through diversified
marketing strategies, the Group aims to internally strengthen the
membership core from within and attract new customers through
external expansion, so as to effectively and purposefully foster the
ties between members and the Group, thereby driving recurring
business from members and promoting sustainable growth of the
Group's business. During the Financial Year under Review, the
number of the Group’s members increased from 1,861,245 as at
31 March 2022 to 2,059,688 as at 31 March 2023, representing an
increase of approximately 10.7%. Since the launch of the mobile
app in 2019, 895,919 people have registered as members through
the Group’s mobile app as of 31 March 2023. In China, as of 31
March 2023, 4,718 people have become members through the
WeChat public website, and 1,411 people have become members
automatically through the WeChat app. The Group will proactively
explore market trends and adjust product categories in an effort
to improve the business model of e-commerce and increase sales.
Meanwhile, for the purpose of strengthening its marketing strategy
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and enhancing brand awareness, the Group has conducted various
marketing and promotional activities to enhance the brand'’s
exposure in the market during the Financial Year under Review.
These marketing initiatives included: (i) partnering with various
e-payment platforms to offer electronic coupons to customers
during the disbursement period of the government’s consumption
vouchers; (ii) launching the “Money Saving Strategies”, which
meant that customers could receive cash coupons upon spending
a specified amount of money; (iii) collaborating with Berndes, a
century-old German premium cookware brand to conduct exclusive
redemption events; and (iv) cooperating with different TV artists
and “KOL", live webcasting, and advertising on TV, newspapers
and social media platforms, which successfully attracted returning
customers as well as the new ones, greatly increasing the buzz
of the Group in the market; (v) collaborating with nutritionists to
promote a healthy image and related healthy food. Through these
efforts, the Group successfully generated recurring businesses
and attracted new customers to garner a significant volume of
consumer buzz for the Group in the market.

Other Business Development

Developing E-commerce in Mainland China

In January 2023, the Group has officially started the pilot
e-commerce business in Mainland China, allowing customers to
shop online through WeChat mini-apps with the coverage of the
3-kilometer radius from where the stores are located with delivery
services. The Group will actively strive to explore market tastes and
adjust product categories in order to improve the new electronic
business model and increase sales.

Introducing CMHT as a Potential Major Shareholder

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 27 March
2023, Mr. Lin Tsz Fung (“Mr. Lin”) and Ms. Hui Ngai Fan (“Ms.
Hui”), the controlling shareholders of the Group, had entered
into a formal Sale and Purchase Agreement (“S&P Agreement”)
with China Merchants Hoi Tung Trading Company Limited (the
“CMHT"), in relation to the sale and purchase of the Company’s
Shares (the “Shares”). Pursuant to the S&P Agreement, CMHT will
purchase 490,000,000 Shares in aggregate, representing 49% of
the total issued Shares. The total consideration for the sale Shares is
HK$862,400,000, equivalent to HK$1.76 per sale share.
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Upon completion, Mr. Lin and Ms. Hui, through entities wholly
owned by them, will each continue to hold their retained shares
respectively, representing in aggregate 26% of the total issued
Shares.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Board anticipates that Hong Kong’'s economy
recovery will accelerate and the retail business environment will
continue to improve. The Group will take a cautiously optimistic
approach in speeding up business expansion, closely monitoring
market changes and taking quick and appropriate measures to
enhance business operational effectiveness, as well as capturing
market opportunities. Therefore, the Group will continue to
strengthen its core competitiveness in the Hong Kong market by
optimizing its product mix to cover more basic foodstuffs and
necessities and enhancing the development of its private label
products, in order to cater to the needs of the local market. The
Group will continue to adopt dual-brand strategy and consistently
look for suitable opportunities to expand the store network of its
major retail brand “Best Mart 360° ({8 /%360°)" and global gourmet
store “FoodVille” in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China, with
a target of achieving a net increase of 20 retail stores each year
to satisfy the demand of different customer segments for quality
food products. The “Best Mart 360° ({223607)" brand will focus on
serving the residential areas and expanding the coverage of its store
network, while “FoodVille” will target large and medium-to-high-
end shopping malls in Hong Kong as well as stores with larger area
and locations with higher customer traffic and stronger consumer
spending power. In addition to the ongoing internal enhancement
to optimize product display space and provide a more comfortable
shopping environment for customers, the Group will endeavor
to increase the number of exclusive products of “FoodVille” and
actively look for medium-to-high-end diversified quality products
around the world so as to further differentiate the two brands.
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To adhere to the mission of providing products with “Best Quality
and “Best Prices”, the Group is committed to strengthen the core
competitiveness of its brand. The Group will continue to source
a diversified range of food products worldwide, as well as to
step up the development of its private label products, which can
satisfy market demand for daily necessities, enrich the choices
for customers and effectively control product quality. Also, the
Group will actively identify upstream suppliers to secure a lower
procurement cost so as to maintain its competitive advantages
in pricing. The Board is of the view that business diversification
can effectively expand the Group’s income stream and enable
the Group to better attract recurring purchases from customers.
In the view of expanding the Group’s potential customer base
and generate more steady streams of revenue to maintain the
profitability, the Group will further develop its business-to-business
(B2B) segment by bulk selling its private label products and other
imported products to other retailers, merchants, enterprises or even
online stores in Hong Kong and overseas markets. In addition, the
Group will fully accelerate its expansion in the Greater Bay Area,
exploring the development of a business model with both direct
stores and franchisees to achieve the goal of a nationwide physical
store. Regarding CMHT, an extensive trading company covering
food and commodities, the Board believes that great business
synergy with our potential major shareholder in B2B area and the
development of the Greater Bay Area could be created.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the Financial Year under Review, the revenue of the Group
mainly represented the retail sales to walk-in customers through
its retail stores which accounted for approximately 98.4% of the
revenue of the Group. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the
revenue of the Group was approximately HK$2,305,907,000,
representing an increase of approximately 16.3% as compared to
approximately HK$1,983,526,000 for the year ended 31 March
2022. The increase in revenue was mainly attributed to additional
revenue from the net opening of 16 new stores by the Group
during this financial year.

Profit for the Year

Profit of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March 2023
amounted to approximately HK$200,997,000, representing
an increase of approximately 83.1% from approximately
HK$109,804,000 for the financial year ended 31 March 2022.
Net profit margin before interest and tax for the financial year
ended 31 March 2023 was approximately 10.8%, while the net
profit margin before interest and tax for the financial year ended
31 March 2022 was approximately 7.1%. Net profit margin was
approximately 8.7% as compared to 5.5% in the previous financial
year. The increase in profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the financial year ended 31 March 2023 as compared to that of
the financial year ended 31 March 2022 was mainly attributable to
the substantial increase in the overall sales from the Group’s retail
stores and gross profit as compared to that of the corresponding
period in last year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the gross profit of the
Group was approximately HK$817,263,000 (2022: approximately
HK$667,654,000), representing an increase of approximately
22.4%, while the gross profit margin was approximately 35.4%
(2022: approximately 33.7%). The increase was attributable to
timely adjustment of sales and marketing strategy and continuous
optimisation of product mix.
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Other Income and Other Gains, Net

For the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recorded
net other income and other gains of approximately HK$19,920,000,
while for the financial year ended 31 March 2022 it recorded net
other income and other gains of approximately HK$875,000. The
increase in other income and other gains, net, was mainly due to
HK$17,996,000 received from the Employment Support Scheme
provided by the Government of the Hong Kong SAR during this
financial year (2022: nil).

Selling and Distribution Expenses

For the financial year ended 31 March 2023, selling and
distribution expenses of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$515,266,000, representing an increase of approximately 12.5%
from approximately HK$457,812,000 for the financial year ended
31 March 2022. The increase in selling and distribution expenses
was mainly due to the reason that during the Financial Year
under Review, a net of 16 new retail stores were opened in Hong
Kong and Macau, resulting in a corresponding increase in rental
expenses and other operating expenses, logistics costs, depreciation
provisions, etc.; and hiring of additional frontline staff to cope with
the expansion of the retail store network.

Administrative and Other Expenses

For the financial year ended 31 March 2023, administrative
and other expenses of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$72,996,000, representing an increase of approximately 5.4%
from approximately HK$69,224,000 for the financial year ended 31
March 2022. The increase in administrative and other expenses was
mainly due to the recruitment of additional personnel during the
Financial Year Under Review to cope with business development
and strengthen internal control and back office support.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B Esmm R o4

Finance Costs

Finance costs of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March
2023 amounted to approximately HK$8,708,000, representing an
increase of approximately 19.1% from approximately HK$7,309,000
for the financial year ended 31 March 2022 which was mainly due
to the increase of interest expenses on lease liabilities as well as
the increase of interest expenses on bank borrowings as a result of
increase in HIBOR for the Financial Year under Review.

Financial Position, Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s total cash and bank balances
(including cash and cash equivalents) were approximately
HK$146,047,000 (2022: HK$130,076,000), representing an
increase of approximately HK$15,971,000 which was mainly
generated from operating activities. The overview of the Group's
cash flow for the financial year ended 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2022 respectively are set out as follows:
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As at 31 March 2023, the Group has total bank borrowings
of approximately HK$79,349,000, representing an decrease
of approximately 4.4% as compared with approximately
HK$82,981,000 as at 31 March 2022. The total unutilised
banking facility extended by commercial banks as at 31 March
2023 amounted to approximately HK$244,411,000 (2022:
HK$234,639,000). The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, secured and approximate
to their fair value.

The Group financed its liquidity and working capital requirements
through a combination of various sources, including but not limited
to cash generated from the Group’s operations, bank borrowings,
and other external equity and debt financings as and when
appropriate.

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position with
cash and bank balances of approximately HK$146,047,000 and
the Group's working capital amounted to HK$101,977,000. Based
on the Group's steady cash inflow from operations, coupled with
sufficient cash and bank balances and readily available banking
facilities, the Group has adequate liquidity and financial resources
to meet its working capital requirements in the next twelve months
from the balance sheet date. During the Financial Year under
Review, the majority of the Group’s cash and bank balances were
in Hong Kong dollar, Macau Pataca, Renminbi and deposited in
reputable financial institutions.

Capital Structure

The Shares were successfully listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange on 11 January 2019 by way of share offer. Since then,
there has been no change in the capital structure of the Company.
The capital structure of the Company comprises of issued share
capital and reserves. As at 31 March 2023, the Company had
1,000,000,000 Shares in issue.
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The capital structure of the Group as at 31 March 2023 in terms of
debt profile is mainly bank borrowings and as at 31 March 2023,
the Group had outstanding bank borrowing of approximately
HK$79,349,000 (2022: HK$82,981,000) repayable within one year
or contain a repayment on demand clause. Bank borrowings bear
interest at floating interest rates. The effective interest rates of the
Group’s bank borrowings is HIBOR plus 1.3% (2022: HIBOR plus
1.3%) per annum for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Capital Commitments

Details of the capital commitments are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2023, the bank borrowings and other banking
facilities of the Group are secured by:

(i) a corporate guarantee provided by the Company and a
subsidiary; and

(i) property, plant and equipment of office premises of the
Group with carrying amount of HK$166,358,000 (2022:
HK$171,350,000).

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk from (i) the purchase of products from
various overseas suppliers, which purchases are primarily settled
in foreign currencies mainly USD, JPY, EUR, GBP, AUD, SGD and
RMB; and (i) the revenue generated from the operation in Macau
and in Mainland China. Nevertheless, taking into account the
retail industry practice and the Group’s current operation and the
stable exchange rate of Macau Pataca historically and cash balance
of Renminbi considered to be not material, the Directors do not
consider the Group is subject to material foreign exchange risk. The
Group will take proactive measures and monitor closely its exposure
to such currencies movement.
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Treasury Policies

The Group adopts prudent treasury management policies and
does not engage in any highly leveraged or speculative derivative
products. Cash balances are mostly placed in Hong Kong dollars
bank deposit with appropriate maturity period for meeting future
funding requirements.

EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION POLICIES

The remuneration policy of the Group to reward the employees
is based on their performance, qualifications, experience and
competence. Remuneration package typically comprises salary,
contribution to pension schemes, discretionary annual bonus,
performance-related bonus, sales target bonus and miscellaneous
duties-related allowances. The Group conducts annual review on
the performance of the employees and make reference to such
performance review for assessing discretionary annual bonus,
salary adjustments and promotion appraisals. The remuneration
package of the executive Directors and the senior management
is determined with reference to those paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and performance of the Directors
and senior management, as well as the performance of the Group.
A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group with reference to their
experience, responsibilities, workload and time devoted to the
Group and performance of the Group.

Our Group makes contributions to the social security fund for our
employees in Macau that qualify and based on, inter alia, whether
long term employees or fixed term employees. As stipulated by the
labour regulations of the PRC, the Group participates in various
defined contribution retirement plans organised by municipal
and provincial governments for its PRC employees. The Group is
required to make contributions to the retirement plans at rates
ranging from 14% to 15% of the eligible employees’ salaries for
the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: 14% to 15%).
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The Company’s employer contribution for each of the above
mentioned scheme/fund/plan vests fully with the employees when
contributed into each respective scheme/fund/plan. Accordingly,
for the financial years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023,
there were no forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of
employees who leave the Scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) that may be used by the employer to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 18 December 2018 for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to the participants for their
contributions to the Group. As at the date of this announcement,
no option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme.

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any material
investments during the financial year ended 31 March 2023.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have other
material acquisitions and disposals during the financial year ended
31 March 2023.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have other plans
for material investments and capital assets as at 31 March 2023.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2023.

DIVIDEND

The Board has decided to convene another Board meeting to
consider the declaration and payment of final dividend for the
financial year ended 31 March 2023, if any, on a date after the end
of the Offer Period (as defined under the Takeovers Code) which
may be made after completion of the sale of Shares by Mr. Lin Tsz
Fung and Ms. Hui Ngai Fan.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since 31 March 2023
and up to the date of this report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out below:

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Tsz Fung (#F1&), aged 51, one of the founders of
the Group, is the chairman and was appointed as an executive
Director on 24 January 2018. Mr. Lin is also one of the controlling
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Lin is primarily responsible for
formulating the Group’s strategic planning and overall business
development and overseeing overall management and operation
of the Group. Mr. Lin is also a director of the subsidiaries of the
Company, i.e. CIAO International Limited, Quality Food 360°
(Holdings) Limited, Best Mart 360 International Limited, Best Mart
360 Macau Holdings Limited, Best Mart 360 Macau Limited, Best
Mart 360 China Holdings Limited, Best Mart 360 Hong Kong
Limited, SF=YI{E RE2EZERHE AR AT (Shenzhen Best Mart 360
Commerce Limited), Abundant Year International Limited, Allied
Wide Limited and Golden Good International Trading Limited.
Mr. Lin has accumulated over 25 years of experience in retail and
wholesale businesses.

Mr. Lin was appointed as a director of The Hong Kong Fujian
Charitable Education Fund (8@ EHFLTIEEEE) since 2014,
a permanent honorary president of Hong Kong Federation of Fujian
Associations Limited (F/&@E B2 AR /A 7)) in 2013, a vice
president of The Federation of Hong Kong Footwear Limited (&7
EHF(1970) 22 /R A7) in 2014, a permanent honorary president
of Hong Kong Federation of Chendai Zhen Clans Limited (&
R sER A @ e AR A F) in 2016, and a vice president of The
Federation of Jinjiang Hong Kong Associations Limited (formerly
known as “JinJiang Clans Association (H.K.) Limited”) (B8 & /L4t
Bl@eF R A5, formerly known as [HE S IRMBEHRAF] )
in 2013. Mr. Lin was also appointed as one of the directors of Pok
Oi Hospital Centenary (70th) board of directors (2019-2020). Mr.
Lin was admitted as Honorary Fellow by The Professional Validation
Centre of Hong Kong Business Sector in July 2017.
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Ms. Hui Ngai Fan (3F2%F), aged 44, one of the founders of the
Group, was appointed as an executive Director on 24 January 2018.
Ms. Hui is also one of the controlling shareholders of the Company.
She is the sister of Mr. Hui Chi Kwan, the chief executive officer of
the Company. Ms. Hui is primarily responsible for formulating the
Group's strategic planning and overall business development and
overseeing overall management and operation of the Group. Ms.
Hui is also a director of the subsidiaries of the Company, i.e. CIAO
International Limited, Quality Food 360° (Holdings) Limited, Best
Mart 360 International Limited, Best Mart 360 Macau Holdings
Limited, Best Mart 360 Macau Limited, Best Mart 360 China
Holdings Limited, Best Mart 360 Hong Kong Limited, *®JI{ERZ
FEZ g2 AR A7 (Shenzhen Best Mart 360 Commerce Limited),
Abundant Year International Limited, Allied Wide Limited and
Golden Good International Trading Limited. Ms. Hui has over 13
years of experience in the retail industry.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Sze Irons (iE%81%), B.B.S., J.P., aged 61, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 18 December 2018.
Mr. Sze obtained a Bachelor of Science from the University of
Wisconsin-La Crosse in May 1985. He is currently an executive
member of the 14th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
(B+HEFBRARBAHE

R 2FEZESFEHKELE), an executive member of the Beijing

Political Consultative Conference

Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (FEARBUGHEEHILRTEZEGFHEE), the
Permanent Honorary President of The Chinese Manufacturers’
Association of Hong Kong, the chairman of the HKCPPCC
(Provincial) Members Association Limited* (24 RIKHZE B HE
@@ ), the Deputy Secretary General of the Hong Kong Coalition,
the chairman of the Mainland Business Advisory Committee of
the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a Council member of
the Hong Kong Repertory Theatre Limited, a member of Labour
Advisory Board under Labour Department and a court member
of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was also elected as
a member of Election Committee of the Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2016. Mr. Sze was
appointed the Justice of the Peace in 2011 and was awarded the
Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in 2015. Mr. Sze is a director of Hang Tung
Resources Limited, a private company in Hong Kong, since March
1984.
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Mr. Sze is an independent non-executive director of Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 25), Continental
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 513), ST International Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 8521), Jianzhong Construction
Development Limited (Stock Code: 589), Forward Fashion
(International) Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 2528)
and Redco Healthy Living Company Limited (Stock Code: 2370)
respectively, all of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.

* The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official name of
the entity is in Chinese.

Ms. Choy So Yuk (¥3% %) B.B.S., J.P., aged 72, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 18 December 2018.
Ms. Choy obtained her Bachelor of Science degree and Master of
Philosophy degree from The University of Hong Kong in 1974 and
1980 respectively. Ms. Choy was a deputy of the 11th to 13th
National People’s Congress of the PRC from 2008 to 2023. She
was a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 1998
to 2008. Ms. Choy was appointed the Justice of the Peace in 2005
and was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of
the HKSAR in 2013.

Ms. Choy is also an independent non-executive director of Silk Road
Logistics Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 988), and Jutal Offshore
Qil Services Limited (Stock Code: 3303), both listed companies in
Hong Kong. She was also an independent non-executive director
of Evershine Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8022), a listed
company in Hong Kong, from May 2015 to January 2021. On 17
October 2022, the listing of the shares of Evershine Group Holdings
Limited was cancelled.

Mr. Lee Ka Lun (ZZXRE), aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 December 2018. Mr.
Lee graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as
“The Hong Kong Polytechnic University”) with a higher diploma in
accountancy in November 1978. He is a fellow of The Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants (now known as “Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants”) since 1985.

Mr. Lee is also an independent non-executive director of Chong
Hing Bank Limited (Stock Code: 1111) which was privatised and
delisted from the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in 2021, Yuexiu
Property Company Limited (Stock Code: 123), Chow Sang Sang
Holdings International Limited (Stock Code: 116), and Ever Harvest
Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1549), all of which are
listed companies in Hong Kong. He was also an independent non-
executive director of Medicskin Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
8307) until his resignation on 15 November 2022.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Hui Chi Kwan (5F58#), aged 46, is the chief executive officer
of the Group since April 2015. Mr. Hui is the brother of Ms. Hui
Ngai Fan, executive director of the Company. He is responsible for
overseeing day to day management of the Group and reporting to
and executing decisions from the Board. Mr. Hui is also a director
of Best Mart 360 Macau Limited and SFHIBREEZHEARA
a] (Shenzhen Best Mart 360 Commerce Limited), subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Hui was appointed as a member of the 12th
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Shandong
Province Committee (FEIARBUAHEE@REFE T _EILREEZE
@) in December 2019 and was appointed as a standing member
of the 13th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
Shandong Province Committee in January 2023. He was appointed
as a member of the 12th and 13th Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Jinjiang Municipal Committee (|2 B A R
A ERE T _ERET=ZEE/IMEES). He was appointed
as vice chairman of the 13th Committee of Jinjiang Federation of
Overseas Chinese, Fujian (B2E&1IMBHET=EZEE) in
April 2023. He was appointed as vice president and a permanent
honorary president of The Fukien Athletic Club (F&RERE®)
in 2015 and was appointed as president of The Fukien Athletic
Club in May 2022. He was appointed as vice-chairman of Eastern
District Industries And Commerce Association Limited (B2 [& T g3
i&) in 2015 and as executive vice-chairman in 2018. Mr. Hui was
appointed as a vice chairman of Hong Kong Department Stores
and Retail General Union (BB & MZEZEEE) in January 2016.
He was also appointed as permanent honorary president of Hong
Kong Fukien Chamber of Commerce (FB@ZEEE) in April 2019
and the president of Hong Kong Federation of Chendai Zhen Clans
Limited (FERERIER LS H R AR]) in June 2019. Mr. Hui was
admitted as Fellow by The Professional Validation Centre of Hong
Kong Business Sector in June 2015. Mr. Hui was appointed as a
permanent honorary president of Hong Kong Shine Tak Foundation
Association Limited in March 2021. Mr. Hui has over 19 years of
experience in retail industry.
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Ms. Cheng, Kennex Wai Kam (E8E ), aged 46, is the chief
financial officer of the Group. Ms. Cheng joined the Group in
September 2021. She is primarily responsible for overseeing the
overall financial position and accounting matters of the Group and
overseeing corporate governance and maintaining risk management
and internal control system.

Ms. Cheng is a member of Hong Kong Institutes of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Ms. Cheng obtained her Bachelor degree
in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
Master of Business Administration from Macquarie University. Ms.
Cheng has more than 8 years of work experience in Henkel, an
international corporation which is listed in Fortune’s Global 500 and
was the chief financial officer and company secretary of Bonjour
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0653) prior to joining the Group. She
has held management position for over 16 years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, in accordance with the principles of good
corporate governance to formulate good corporate governance
practice for improvement of accountability and transparency in
operations, and to strengthen the internal control system from
time to time so as to ensure to meet with the expectations of the
shareholders of the Company.

During the Financial Year under Review, the Company has adopted
and complied with all applicable code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”).

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
separate and performed by different individuals to ensure a
balance of power and authority, so that power is not concentrated
in any one individual. Mr. Lin Tsz Fung, Chairman and Executive
Director, is responsible for formulating the Group’s strategic
planning and overall business development and overseeing overall
management and operation of the Group, while Mr. Hui Chi
Kwan, Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for overseeing day
to day management of the Group and reporting to and executing
decisions from the Board. There is a clear division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct governing the securities transactions by the Directors.
Following a specific enquiry made by the Company on the Directors,
all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the Financial
Year under Review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising
the overall management of the Group’s business. The Board is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by providing effective leadership and direction to its business,
formulating group policies and business directions, monitoring
internal controls and performances, and ensuring transparency and
accountability of its operations. The powers and duties of the Board
include convening general meetings and reporting the Board's
work at the Shareholders’ meetings, determining the business and
investment plans, preparing the periodic financial budgets and
reports, preparing the financial accounts, overseeing the financial
reporting process, formulating proposals for profit distributions and
exercising other powers, functions and duties as conferred by the
articles of association of the Company. The Board has established
Board committees and has delegated to these Board committees
various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference which are published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Company has established relevant mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board and
conducted review of such mechanisms on an annual basis.
Members of our audit committee are independent non-executor
directors who are able bring independent and objective views to
the Board.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and are
entitled to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.

The management of the Company is accountable to the Board
and performs the following major duties: reporting to the Board,
executing the resolutions of the Board, and completing all the tasks
assigned by the Board.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises of the following five Directors during the
Financial Year under Review:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Tsz Fung (Chairman)
Ms. Hui Ngai Fan

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Sze Irons BBS JP
Ms. Choy So Yuk BBS JP
Mr. Lee Ka Lun

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior
Management” of this report.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Group. Ms. Hui Ngai Fan, an executive Director, is the sister
of Mr. Hui Chi Kwan, Chief Executive Officer of the Group. There
was no financial, business, family or other material relationship
among the Directors.

The independent non-executive Directors have extensive experience
in different areas or professions and will give independent advice
to the Board from time to time. By their active participation in
Board meeting and by their service on various Board committees,
the independent non-executive Directors contribute in important
ways to the effective direction and strategic decision making of
the Group. The terms of appointment of the independent non-
executive Directors are set out on page 87 of this report.

During the Financial Year under Review, the Board had at all
times met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-third
of the Board.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
confirmation of independence in writing pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Based on such confirmation, the Company
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent and have met the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the Financial Year under
Review.

BOARD MEETING

The Board scheduled four meetings during the Financial Year under
Review. All Directors attended the meetings. The Company expects
to hold at least four meetings per year, with special Board meetings
being scheduled as required. Formal notice of at least 14 days will
be given in respect of a regular meeting, while for special Board
meetings, reasonable notice will be given.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee to assist in carrying out its responsibilities and functions.
Each of these committees has specific written terms of reference
setting out its duties and authorities, and are available for review
on the respective website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The committees have sufficient resources to execute their requisite
duties and enjoy the support of the management.

Audit Committee

The primary duties of the audit committee are to assist the Board by
providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of
the Group, to oversee the audit process, to develop and review the
policies and to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned
by the Board. The audit committee comprises of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Sze Irons, Ms. Choy So Yuk
and Mr. Lee Ka Lun. The chairman of the audit committee is Mr.
Lee Ka Lun.
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The Group's audited annual results for the year ended 31 March
2023 and the unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30
September 2022 had been reviewed by the audit committee, which
was of the opinion that the preparation of such results complied
with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and
that adequate disclosures were made.

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the remuneration committee include (but
without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the Directors
regarding the policy and structure for the remuneration of all
the Directors and senior management of the Group and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policies; (ii) making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management; (iii) reviewing and approving the management'’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; and (iv) considering and approving the grant
of share options to eligible participants pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme. The remuneration committee comprises of two
independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director,
namely, Mr. Sze Irons, Ms. Choy So Yuk, and Mr. Lin Tsz Fung. The
chairman of the remuneration committee is Mr. Sze Irons.

During the Financial Year under Review, the remuneration
committee held one meeting to review matters related to the
remuneration structure of the Directors and senior management of
the Company.

Nomination Committee

The primary function of the nomination committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of members
of the Board. The nomination committee comprises of two
independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director,
namely, Ms. Choy So Yuk, Mr. Lee Ka Lun and Ms. Hui Ngai Fan.
The chairman of the nomination committee is Ms. Choy So Yuk.
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The Company recognises and embraces the importance and benefit
to achieve diversity on the Board to corporate governance and
board effectiveness. The Company sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment of
its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In deciding
the composition of the Board, the Company will consider the Board
diversity from various perspectives with reference to the Company’s
business model and specific needs, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience.
All appointments of the Board are based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
nomination committee has primary responsibility for identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board and
shall give adequate consideration to this policy in selection of board
candidates.

The Board has achieved the measurable objectives in the Board
diversity policy. Our Board currently comprises of five members,
including one female executive director and one female non-
executive Director.

The nomination committee will continue to review the Board
diversity policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness and
discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings
and Board Committee meetings of the Company held during the
Financial Year under Review is set out in the table below:

EENEFEEENENHFLE

BREENEEMBFEALEARRESESE
MEZELZEEGZMMFELENT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE EERY
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board = Committee Committee ~ Committee Meeting
Name of Director ESHP Exe EyZEg YHWZEE RRZEL REAE
Executive Directors; HITEE -
Mr. Lin Tsz Fung MFELE 474 N/A N N/A 1N
TNER NEfB
Ms. Hui Ngai Fan RS RE 444 N/A N/A 7n 17
ik ek
Independent non-executive Directors: B TEE
Mr. Sze Irons HERIE L 4/4 212 11 N/A 1/1
TEA
Ms. Choy So Yuk BEfut 4/4 212 17 i i
Mr. Lee Ka Lun FRERAE 4/4 22 N/A 11 17
N
DIRECTORS' LIABILITIES INSURANCE EEETEE

During the Financial Year under Review, the Company had
arranged for appropriate and adequate insurance cover to protect
the Directors from legal action arising from the performance of
their duties as a Director. Such insurance coverage is reviewed and
renewed by the Board on an annual basis.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the remuneration of the
Group’s senior management (excluding the Directors of the
Company) fell within the following bands:

REEFRBFEEA - ARFERBEZAERIH
RBRRE - WREEEEXABTESRE M
EEEMERFR - ERRREEAHEESR
Flar MEE -

SREERENE
REBE-_Z-_=F=A=+—HILFE  K&£H

ZERERE(TEREAARER) M NFT
5IgE -

Number

AE

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,0017#7L.22,000,000/%8 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 723,000,000/ 7T -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 024,000,000/ 7T 1
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AER

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Pursuant to the CG Code A.6.5, Directors should
participate in appropriate continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. All Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s
expenses. All directors have participated in continuous professional
development and provided a record of training they received for the
year to the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors though having delegated
the corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee which
include, but are not limited to:

1) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations to the
Board;

2) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

3)  reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
the Directors; and

5) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration that should be paid to the external
auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, for the audit of the year
ended 31 March 2023 and non-audit services is set out below:

BB BTN =

REBEE-_T-_=F-A-t+—HUEFENZER
BRI N T AR RIINEZ BB A LE
ERETMEBRERA R NEE ST E5
T

Nature of Service REME Fees Paid/Payable
Bt/ ENER

HK$

BT

Audit services ZH RS 1,630,000
Non-audit services IZBURTE 250,000
Total Bt 1,880,000

The above fees for non-audit services mainly represent the fees for
the auditor’s service in relation to the review of the Company’s
interim results.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2023, and confirmed that the financial statements of the
Company were prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, and
having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any
undisclosed material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ko Wilson Wai Shun was appointed as the company secretary
on 1 January 2021. Mr. Ko Wilson Wai Shun is an external service
provider to the Company and a solicitor practising in Hong Kong.
He has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
as required by the Listing Rules. The primary contact person
between the Company and Mr. Ko Wilson Wai Shun is Ms. Cheng
Wai Kam, Kennex, the chief financial officer of the Company.
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BEHR

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has adopted a series of internal control policies and
has implemented risk management policies to address various
potential risks identified in relation to the Group’s operations,
including operational risks, credit risks, market risks, financial risks
and legal risks.

The risk management and internal control systems adopted by
the Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The audit committee is responsible for reviewing the internal
control systems and procedures for compliance with the
requirements prescribed by the applicable laws, rules and
regulations. The Board is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company, and through
the audit committee, conducted an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems in its financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. If defects are
discovered during the review, the Board and the CEO wiill
review such defects and make corresponding plans to resolve
them, taking into consideration the available resources.

The Company does not have an internal audit function but will
review the need for one annually. Given the Group’s simple
operating structure, the management is of the opinion that
instead of setting up an internal audit department, it would
be more cost effective to engage an independent external
professional party to review on annual basis the internal
control systems and measures of the Group and report to
the audit committee. Furthermore, a compliance team which
includes the chief financial officer has been established to
organise, review and maintain the internal control system and
to provide assistance to the Directors, senior management and
employees with respect to the internal control policies. The
Company convenes meetings periodically to discuss financial,
operational, compliance and risk management control.

The Directors and senior management keep track of day-to-
day operations and monitor any associated operational risks of
the Group and formulate policies and resolutions to mitigate
or resolve these risks.
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e Trainings are provided to relevant employees in order
to enhance their industry knowledge and to encourage
encompassing culture of risk management ensuring that
the relevant employees are aware of and responsible for risk
management.

e During the Financial Year under Review, the Company has
engaged external legal advisers to advise the Company on
compliance with and provide updates on the changes in the
Listing Rules and the applicable Hong Kong laws, rules and
regulations from time to time and as required.

e The Company has established procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information, to
ensure that inside information and sensitive information in
relation to the Company will remain confidential until the
disclosure of such information is appropriately approved.

The Board is of the opinion that the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems were adequate and effective during the
Financial Year under Review.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has no fixed dividend policy specifying a dividend
payout ratio. The amount of any dividends to be declared will be
subject to the decision by the Board and will depend on, among
others, the Group's results of operations, available cashflows and
financial condition, operating and capital requirements, the articles
of association of the Company, the Companies Laws, applicable
laws and regulations and any other factors that the Directors deem
relevant. Dividends may be paid only out of the distributable profits
of the Company as permitted under the applicable laws and shall
not exceed the amount determined by the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make proposals
or make a motion at the annual general meetings under the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company or
the laws of the Cayman Islands. Shareholders who wish to
make proposals or make a motion may, however, convene an
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM") in accordance with the
“Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM” set out below.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM

In accordance with article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, extraordinary general meeting shall be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at the general
meetings of the Company. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the company secretary for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting should be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition.

Any requisition to convene an extraordinary general meeting
or proposal to be put forward at the general meeting can be
addressed to the principal place of business in Hong Kong of the
Company at 11th Floor, C-Bons International Center, No. 108 Wai
Yip Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong marked
with the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary. The
requisitionists must state in their requisition(s) the objects of the
extraordinary general meeting to be convened, and such requisition
must be signed by all the requisitionists. Upon receipt, the
Company will verify the requisitionists’ particulars and shareholding
and if the requisition is in order, the Company will convene the
extraordinary general meeting in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company. On the contrary, if the requisition has
been verified as not in order, the requisitionists concerned will be
advised of the outcome and accordingly, the Board will not convene
the extraordinary general meeting and/or include the proposal(s)
made or the resolution(s) proposed by the requisitionists at the
extraordinary general meeting.

Communications with Shareholders

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy
to ensure effective communication with Shareholders of the
Company. Under the policy, the Company’s information shall be
communicated to the Shareholders through general meetings,
including annual general meetings of the Company, the Company’s
corporate communications (including, but not limited to, the annual
report, the interim report, notices of meeting, circulars and proxy
forms), information and materials on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website.
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The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the Shareholders’ communication policy including steps taken at
the annual general meeting and the handling of queries received (if
any) which were conducted during the Financial Year under Review
and considered the Shareholders’ communication policy to be
effective and adequate.

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for publicly
available information and provide comments and suggestions
to Directors or management of the Company. Such questions,
requests and comments can be addressed to the Company by mail
to 11th Floor, C-Bons International Center, No. 108 Wai Yip Street,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
by mail to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17M Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
or by telephone at (852) 2862-8555, who has been appointed by
the Company to deal with Shareholders for share registration and
related matters.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

In order to be in line with the latest legal and regulatory
requirements, including (i) the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong); and (ii) the amendments made
to Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules, which took effect on 1 January
2022, introducing a common set of core shareholder protection
standards applicable to all listed issuers in Hong Kong, the Board
has put forward to the shareholders of the Company a special
resolution to adopt a new articles of association of the Company
(“New Articles”) in substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the
existing constitution of the Company (“Existing Articles”). On 19
August 2022, a special resolution for adopting the New Articles
in substitution for and to the exclusion of the Existing Articles was
passed by the shareholders of the Company at the 2022 annual
general meeting of the Company.

For details of the New Articles, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 8 July 2022 and the circular of the Company
dated 19 July 2022.
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Overview

Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited recognizes the significance of
sustainable development in the Group’s business operations
regarding the environment and the well-being of the community.
The Group is committed to considering environmental, social and
governance aspects through integration into its business operations,
and promoting sustainability in its business activities.

The Group, as a responsible corporation, recognizes its role in
promoting industry sustainability and has adopted sustainability
features into its business operations. In order to develop its
sustainability plan, the Group intends to strengthen partnerships
with key stakeholders in the future.

The Group is pleased to present its Environmental, Social, and
Governance (“ESG") report. This ESG report summarizes the
Group's ESG initiatives, plans, and performances for the fiscal year
ended 31 March 2023 (“Financial Year under Review”) and
demonstrates its commitment to sustainable development.

Reporting Scope

The Group’s business operations consisted of head office,
warehouse and retail stores located in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 (“Reporting
Period”). The reporting boundary is restricted to operations which
contributed the major source of revenue to the Group during the
Reporting Period. There were no major assets excluded from the
reporting boundary.

Reporting Basis

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “Report”)
was prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide set out in the Appendix 27 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
In preparation of the Report, the Group strictly adhered to the
principles of Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency to
disclose the ESG-related measures and performances.
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Reporting Principles

In preparation of this Report, our Group has taken due diligence to
adhere to the Reporting Principles stipulated in the ESG Reporting
Guide:

e  Materiality — The materiality assessment has ensured the
Report addresses the most material ESG topics pertaining to
our businesses.

e Quantitative — The Report strives to disclose quantitative
metrics and related targets whenever possible, to demonstrate
our impact. The quantitative KPI and the information on the
standards, methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation
tools used for the quantitative KPI, and the source of
conversion factors being used are, where applicable, have
been disclosed in the Report.

e  Balance - The Report presents an unbiased representation of
our ESG management approach and performance. It avoids
misleading omissions and presentation.

e  Consistency — Whenever deemed material, the Report details
the standards, tools, assumptions and/or source of conversion
factors used, as well as explanations of any inconsistencies to
previous reports.

The corporate governance disclosure of the Group was prepared
in accordance with all applicable code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code under Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange. Information regarding the Group's
corporate governance was set out separately in the “Corporate
Governance Report” in this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS STATEMENT

We consider ESG commitments to be part of our responsibilities
and are committed to incorporating ESG factors into our decision-
making process. The Board takes the overall responsibility for the
oversight of the Group’s ESG matters, including policies, measures,
performance and risks, and is committed to incorporating
environmental, social and governance considerations into its
business operations, and pledges to improve the sustainability
performance through resources optimisation in the operation.
Specifically, the Board is charged with strategizing and
implementing ESG action plans, as well reviewing and discussing
target-setting, performance, opportunities and risks.

EEEEH
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Maintaining effective communication and relationship with our
stakeholders is critical and essential to our Group’s continuing
success. Through stakeholder engagement, we are able to
better understand and gauge their expectations thus allowing
development of our ESG strategies to achieve a manageable
sustainability approach. The Group connects with external and
internal partners including employees, customers, investors,
suppliers, business partners, and non-governmental organisations
("NGOs") through a wide range of communication channels
such as emails, press releases, meetings and site visits, etc. Apart
from the Annual General Meeting, the Group shares its ESG
performance with the investors and shareholders and collects their
feedback through online meetings, sharing, emails, surveys and
press conferences. We ensure stakeholder inclusiveness in our
sustainability decision-making and priority concerns.

Governments PN
R I

Best Mart

by 360°
{25360 /

Employees
s

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ comments and suggestions on
its sustainability performance and disclosure. If any stakeholder has
any feedback or suggestions on the Report, please send them to
the Company’s registered office by post (11/F, C-Bons International
Center, 108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong) or
to our email address at info@bestmart360.com. Your feedback or
suggestions would immensely help the Group continuously improve
its sustainability performance.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT EFEEMFE

The issues listed below are considered by the Board to be material A THHHEBWESSRASEEMN - WHH
and relevant to the Group’s various environmental and social issues  IR3E - & RERMEIESTERNAEFBNE
considered in the ESG Reporting Guide. Through peer group and  TEIRIEM+ B IEE o BBY L RAX RIBE -
ESG framework benchmarking, the materiality of each ESG topic HE&NERIEZREYE  BEFrHHEIRE #HEekE
was determined. This has enabled the Group to prioritise our /E.;%%E’jﬁ 1 (FAREBEMREEEEIRE 1+

ESG actions and allocate resources more effectively. To facilitate REBITENEITEE  WBEERHELE
comprehensive understanding to the stakeholders, our ESG report /J% c REFNHEBREZEMER  RE - a8 kE
discloses on all of the topics. AMEEREMEAEEE -

ESG Aspects as set forth in ESG Reporting Guide Materiality
(RR - HERERBMEIES]) FTENERR - HERECEE BEM
(A) A1 Emissions Medium
Environmental e i
BR A2 Use of Resources Medium
BIREA as
A3 Environment and Natural Resources Medium
RERRAEIR H
A4 Climate Change Medium
RIREE R
(B) B1 Employment High
Social (&0 =
s B2 Health and Safety High
fEREZ 2 =
:E B3 Development and Training Medium
TR RIE ki
B4 Labour Standards High
T8 =
B5 Supply Chain Management H_igh
HreEE =
B6 Product Responsibility High
EmEE =
B7 Anti-corruption Medium
R&EF aE
B8 Community Investment Medium
HERE ae
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group is committed to offering quality products in a
manner that ensures a safe and healthy workplace for the
Group’s employees and minimises the Group’s potential
impact on the environment. The Group will operate in
compliance with all relevant environmental legislation and it
strives to use pollution prevention and environmental best
practices throughout its operations.

The Group’s environmental policy therefore is to:

e  (Consider environmental concerns and impacts as part of
our decision making and activities;

e Minimise the production of waste and then reuse or
recycle as much of it as is possible;

e Minimise energy use within our operations and
processes in order to conserve supplies and minimize the
consumption of natural resources;

e Where possible, purchase products and services that do
the least damage to the environment;

e Educate and inform the Group’s employees about
environmental issues that may affect their work;

e  Promote environmental awareness among the Group’s
employees and encourage them to work in an
environmentally responsible manner; and

e Communicate our environmental commitment to
customers and the public and encourage them to support
the Group’s environmental commitments.

The group is principally engaged in retail business in
Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China and the business
operations do not directly generate industrial pollutants that
are generally regarded as having a high environmental impact
such as hazardous emissions, wastes or pollutants. The Group
understands and respects its responsibility to the environment,
and endeavours to achieve eco-friendly operations
and conservation of resources in pursuit of sustainable
development.
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During the Financial Year under Review, the Group had not
been involved in any material non-compliance issues in respect
of any applicable laws and regulations on environmental

protection.

A.1 Emissions

REBEMBRERER - AKENEEPEM
BRRERNEMERERIERNERER

1B o

A1 BB

Air emission

The Group does not directly produce air emissions. The
major source of air emissions is from the transportation
of the products in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China. The Group engaged several external logistic
service companies including a Hong Kong logistic
company, Macau and Mainland China shipping and
logistic service companies to collect, distribute and/
or deliver goods between products’ arrival shipping
terminal, airport and warehouse of forwarders appointed
by the Group’s overseas suppliers, and warehouses
and retail stores of the Group. As the logistic services
are operated by independent third parties that are not
owned by or controlled by the Group, therefore the
retrieval of relevant data of such emissions in Hong Kong,
Macau and Mainland China are not feasible. Instead, as
a major client of our logistic partners, we engage in close
collaboration to minimize the environmental impact of
the transportation fleet through the following methods:

e We streamline the logistic routing and maximise the
loading capacity of each transportation vehicle;

e We arrange delivery services to the retail stores in
during non-peak hours;

e We encourage our logistics partners to upgrade
their fleet to the latest emission standards. For
example, our Hong Kong logistic partner had
upgraded all of its heavy-duty vehicles to the Euro VI
emission standard in 2019; and

e We ensure our logistics partners are operating in
accordance with all prevailing environmental laws
and regulations.

BRI

AEBTERELER - BRIFNER
KBEEE RPN EANERER
Bz - AEBEREZEINEWRIRE A
A BRE-HEERAMRAR  RPIRT
BRtAERBRRRB AR B
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Greenhouse gases (GHG) emission

The only source of GHG emission is Scope 2 GHG
emissions, which were contributed by electricity
consumption (for the exact usage, please refer to A.2 Use
of resources). Scope 1 GHG emissions typically include
fuel usage from company-owned/controlled vehicles or
equipment, which is not applicable to our operations.
The data includes the head office and warehouse in
Hong Kong and retail stores in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China. The Group aims to reduce its GHG
emissions in the coming year to levels below those of this
year.

The GHG emission data is set out in the table below.

GHG emissions 2022/2023

Scope 1 Direct Emission

EE1E RN

Scope 2 Indirect Emission

#E2RE B 3.345.51
. .

Total GHG emission
Nol =

BERENEE

BEREBHERE —E-—= /===

BERBEHH

AEENREREFROME—HRD
BE2MWREREBEN - AEHRKA
BER(RRAEFRZHA2ERE
Rl - BE1WEEREBHEERRE
REVGEA S ER R AR
oo ETERRASRENEE - 8RR
EBEBREARNREBARES EFIR
hE A TEEE o NEEHEINR
FHERERBINEREENAFE
EVBERRK S

BEREBHBREBIEININ TR -

By

tonnes of COz-e

sl =

FE—AtikEE

tonnes of CO2-e

sl =

gE—StikE =

tonnes of COz-e

sl =

WA tiEE

Discharges into water and land

The disclosure of discharges into water and on land is
not applicable to the Group as no store and warehouse
operations generate any waste discharges into water and
on land.

1K R+ #9555

RGN BRSBTS REEER
FEYIRIK KPS - K R Bt
SRBURRENERNASE -
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Non-recyclable Waste

Our waste is categorized as non-hazardous municipal
waste. Depending on the local regulations and
capabilities, we separate the non-recyclable from the
recyclable waste. Waste volume is managed and tracked
internally. We have a number of programs to raise
staff’'s awareness and introduce best practices on waste
management, including office, warehouse and frontline.

The details of the non-recyclable wastes are listed as
follows:

T A EKEY

BAPTE) BE W) 55 2R /5 FEFE R M O AR T AL
P o MBEBHHDERMEEN - RIFHED
A] B RO REY) N R] IR BE D 0 B - R
YMEMANBEIEMEM - RFIEE T
FRIEREIMER - W AEMER
MRERE - BRERAE - REAKLA
AR o

AR B EIEERIFEIR AT -

Non-recyclable wastes

FrE K EEY

General office wastes
— A EEEY) 0.82 tonnes A
Disposable utensils from staff meal

. 07
B T AR e A ‘ 29.51 tonnes I
A.2 Use of resources A2 ERFER

AEBHETEREEEREMOM

The Group is committed to complying with all laws

62

regulations on managing the use of resources and
strives to become a resource-saving and environmental
responsible enterprise through the implementation of
various policies and procedures which aims to achieve
higher efficiency in resource use and also reduction in
the overall use of resources throughout the Group's
operations, where possible.

Use of energy

The major source of energy used by the Group

BERRER - WBEEETRREK R
T2 - B RIS BRI AR R
DAREEBRBLETEANERSE
3% M A—RENER - HIREA
BH)RE -

FEIRE

$%l1§ﬁﬁﬁﬁig%ﬁé’%%§ﬁ CHIZ

is electricity, which is mainly used in the general Fﬁﬁf\$$l¢}#“* EIERHREER
lighting, air-conditioning and powering of computers, — MR ARAA uﬂl%&%ﬁ«( PWAERME
office equipment and other equipment in the office, &Emmﬁﬂ'ﬂ o NFERLIREFELR

retail stores and warehouse of the Group. The total
energy consumption of the year was 7,115,778 kWh
(2021/2022: 6,076,313 kWh) which is 17.1% higher
than that of the last reporting year and was due to
expansion of the Group's operations. The Group has also
strived to enhance efficiency through various ways such as
cleaning the air conditioners, and will continue to explore
ways to improve energy efficiency in daily operation.

EA7115 718 TR (—2-— /%
Z % 6,076,313 F FELEF) © R AR
EFES17.1% @ WWIRRAEEEE
BERATE - AEBINBNBEB TR E
R - PIEREFARE - WisHE
BRI EESEPREERUENT
ko
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The energy consumption data is set out in the table BOREREEUENNATER °
below.

Vi . 2022/2023 2021/2022 .
~ ‘- Energy consumption ——— D= Unit
YT HERERE e —go- B

Hong Kon
%.5;%9 ° 6,821,952 5,961,830 kWh T LR
Indirect energy Electricity Macau
I BEIR EW P9 222,192 114,483 kWh TR
Mainland China 71634 N/A KWh FRE
R M ' TEm N
i (note 1)
Iof‘a!\,e”ergg" consumption Total 7,115,778 6,076,313 kWh FEAS
AR HFEAR 8 (D Gy
kWh/revenue
Energy intensity (ote? TR A
SLIRBE ) EORIS L BRI (HKD Million)
(BE&ET)
A\ _Z
Note 1: The increase in consumption of electricity and the generation MisE1 : AREEEMNEEBEER —S(LIREE
of carbon dioxide emissions for this reporting year as compared HER-EAREEEAS  FEEZ2HR
to that of last reporting year was mainly due to the increase in AEBNSEEHBEREAREFER
the number of retail stores of the Group in this reporting year. BR8N o o) - ANEEIRNEE REE
In addition, the Group increased the product categories to ZHEELRRY  YAUHEEFEAES
selling frozen foods, therefore more refrigerators are needed for IKEEESTERY) - BB NS o
storage which increased the energy consumption.
Note 2: The revenue of this reporting year is HKD2,305,907,000 and last Mizr2 : AR 4E FE w9 U A A 2,305,907,000
reporting year is HKD1,983,526,000. B FEREFEHRAR
1,983,526,000/ 7T ©
Water consumption FEK
Water usage in the Group’s business operation is minimal MR AEE M ZETEREKR - ARsE
as the Group’s operation does not consume water. B XKL ENRKERRE - NREEA
Water is mainly used by employees for drinking and RAEERANE TEEFRERE © U
personal hygiene purpose in the office, retail stores and HESKAREEAGERSE - AAE
warehouses of the Group and was relatively insignificant. RSN - A2 SREUE A 7KOR B3 AT {A]
There was no issue in sourcing water that is fit for R -

purpose.
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Packaging Material and other resources BENERAMER
The usage of packaging materials and other resources AEEEKLERFERZBEMBRE
used by the Group in its business operation are paper &R ARR N EBEYRNER=N
and plastic shopping bags is listed as follows: T:

=D Besources
& HR
A4 Papers A4#Kik 3,411 ream % 7.98 tonnes Mf
A3 Papers A3 350 ream < 1.64 tonnes [
Thermal paper ZAGAR 101,850 rolls & 8.15 tonnes M8
Printer toner %5 879 boxes & 0.08 tonnes &
Wrapping film 82 36,938 rolls % 76.09 tonnes [
Plastic bags #22%% 3,273,032 pieces ¥ 66.64 tonnes M
Carton boxes # & 8,783,051 pieces 3 3,991.95 tonnes M§
Label 1Z%; 2,264 rolls & 3.19 tonnes Mg
The recycling of the resources is listed as follows: BEREWERES AT

=D\ Resources Unit Recycling percentage
Zo BR By mE DL

A4 Papers A4 #{5R 1.97 tonnes M43 24.7%
Wrapping film 8% 4 & 60.74 tonnes M8 79.8%
Carton boxes A& 3,991.95 tonnes M 100.0%
Label 124 0.09 tonnes [# 2.8%
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A.3 Impacts on natural resources and management

actions

The Group believes that corporate development should
not come at the expense of the environment. The
Group's material impact on the environment and natural
resources are in the form of electricity and material
consumption, as well as waste generation. Other
environmental impact such as noise pollution or impact
to biodiversity is not material given the nature of our
business activities. The following summarises our efforts
in reducing our adverse negative environmental impacts.

The Group has adopted the following measures for
energy and resources saving during this reporting year

e switch-off lighting, air-conditioning and computer
monitors when leaving the office areas and
workplaces to reduce electricity consumption;

e automatically switch off non-essential lighting in
office areas and workspaces after office hours;

e |Install block-out curtains to keep out sunlight and
heat during daytime and maintain a relatively lower
room temperature;

e switch off all non-essential air-conditioning in
retail stores when the retail stores are closed after
operation hours;

e maintain air-conditioning temperature to avoid
power wastage (in office generally at 24-26°C, in
retail stores generally at around 24-25°C in autumn
and winter seasons and at not lower than 19°C in
summer season); and

e Jogin with staff card when photocopying to
encourage paper saving;

A3 HRRERNTEREETH

AEBEMEE - EERERTENBIRE
BRE - ARBELIRBERRABE RS
RNBEATERRAEE ) RIFBREA
REMELMITE - SR EENERBE
BHUE B SRAHEMSRUERE
FEMREZEL TNEE - TXRET
SEERO T RAmERETETE
PERIE ] »

AEBERARE FERIUA TEIHIEE
REERE N

o BEFMAREBNTESAE - BE
WA =RLERER - AR
KEIHRE

o WMAORHERAPELNBLEER
B & TAEZEfR M FE s ZARER

o ZRERER EAXKEERX
RES) - REFEHEIENER

o TERMIFLEREZBME
Bt [E NFTE IEMN B ZEH

o RETEFRENEEREBE
NE—RABK24Z26E - TE
ERRMNEZEH —RAEK24%
BELLE  REFAETERER
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For resources used in daily operation, the following
measures have been adopted:

paperless office is encouraged by using electronic
POS, WMS and M18 and electronic note-taking.
If that is not possible, paper used by the Group is
sourced from suppliers which are certified to be in
compliance with Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)
Chain-of-Custody certification and promote double
sided printing, where possible;

collection boxes for one-sided paper are placed next
to printers in office to encourage paper recycling;

very thin thermal paper rolls used by cash registers
of retail stores have been tested to be free from
bisphenol A;

tissue paper and towel paper used by the Group
have been tested to be in compliance with GB
standard 20810-2006 Bathroom Tissue (including
bathroom tissue base paper);

electronic salary statements have been adopted to
exempt paper usage;

time attendance system and leave application
system of employees have been computerized to
minimize paper usage;

ink boxes and toner cartridges used by the Group
are sourced from manufacturers which are certified
to be in compliance with ISO 9001:2016;

choosing vendors using water-based latex ink
instead of traditional latex ink to print advertising
materials;

garbage classification has been implemented in the
office and warehouse of the Group for the ease of
waste recycling;

e

o %
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all circulars and notices to retail stores are sent in
electronic format to exempt paper usage;

the polybags used by the Group are made of oxo-
biodegradable plastic which have satisfied relevant
product environmental criteria set by Green Council
and has been certified and licensed under the Hong
Kong Green Label Scheme;

reduced the use of the undegradable plastic wrap by
increasing the use of reusable ropes and nylon ties
in replacement of the one-time packaging plastic
wrap for bounding products and the use of pallet
cage carts that secure products on the transition
from warehouses to retail stores;

reduced the use of disposable cutlery by increasing
the use of washable cutlery and lunch boxes;

reduced the use of single-use batteries by increasing
the use of rechargeable electronic products; and

encouraged effective internal lighting by daylighting
if possible.

In addition, the Group promotes the quantitative
reduction of wastage at source by:

reducing food wastage by offering slow-moving and
expiring products at clearance prices to customers;

no festival gift wrapping in order to reduce the
wrapping paper; and

strictly complying with the Product Eco-responsibility
(Amendment) Ordinance 2014 and the plastic
shopping bag levy in Hong Kong.

BRGTERHOAMALAS
BB FRAEE - URkRER
AR

AEEE RN BB RETAE
W BB R A RIRE
i S AR IR A
WEREEBRRBEBNR
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Group will continue to review its operation and explore BRRTTEZE  THHRZEMEE - LA
E—RADSRREY - BlrERER
R e s o

Looking ahead, aiming at growing the business without
depleting the environment and natural resources, the

other possibilities to further diminish pollutants and
waste, optimize energy consumption and improve energy
efficiency.
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A.4 Climate Change

Climate change is an issue that the Group is fully aware
of and understands as being one that will inevitably
affect all of the Group’s business operations and its
stakeholders. The Board is responsible for ensuring the
Group is prepared to tackle both physical and transition
climate risks, and the Group's vulnerability to these risks.
The Group has implemented a number of mitigation
plans and measures in order to extreme weather-proof its
assets and reduce our carbon footprint from its managed
properties. Climate-related risks have been classified by
the Group into physical and transition risks, which are as
follows:

Physical Risk

Physical climate risks come in the form of extreme
weather conditions in greater frequency and intensity,
as well as rise in sea level. The operations of the Group
are located in Hong Kong and Macau. Extreme weather
conditions such as typhoons and heavy rains are expected
to become more frequent with climate change. The
Group has prepared contingency plans to cope with these
threats. For example, the Group maintains comprehensive
insurance to cover damage to the Group’s assets arising
from flooding and typhoons.

Transition Risk

Transition climate risks are the evolution of the
regulatory, technological and market landscape due to
climate change action. It is believed that environmental-
related policies and regulations, such as waste reduction
requirements, will be tightened in the future. The Group
will promote and encourage employees to reduce
waste in their daily business activities, and will also
provide relevant information and resources to enhance
responsiveness. The Group will monitor updates on
climate change-related regulations on a periodic basis.
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SOCIAL

As a responsible business and employer, the Group seeks to
leverage positive impacts on its staff and community, as well as
its business partners. The Group is committed to consistently
looking for ways to meet corporate social responsibilities.

B.1 Employment and labour practices

Human resources is a critical foundation of the Group’s
operations and fundamental to achieving the continued
development of the Group. The Group treats its
employees as one of its valuable assets. The Group
generally recruits employees from the open market.
The recruitment process is conducted thoroughly and
monitored by the human resources department to
ensure fairness, factors such as their experience in the
retail industry would be reviewed. The Group is an equal
opportunities employer and is committed to providing
equal opportunities in recruitment and promotion,
regardless of age, gender, race, color, religion,
nationality, marital status or disability.

The Group conducts performance reviews for the
employees periodically and would access salary
adjustments and promotion appraisals based on their
performance. The Group offers discretionary annual
bonus to all of the employees and, for the front-line
staff, performance-related bonus, sales target bonus and
miscellaneous duties-related allowances. The Group also
offers various benefit plans to the employees, including
staff shopping discounts, top-up leave entitlement and
medical insurance. The Group would regularly review
its remuneration policy to ensure packages offered by
the Group are appealing to employees, which could
persistently increase the loyalty and incentives of
employees.
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During the Financial Year under Review, there was no REEMBEEAN - WEEMEEES
material non-compliance with the relevant laws and Y AEBBEEAFZENREEENE
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group FHERERBER -

relating to employment.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group's total workforce and R-ZE-_=F=A=+—8 ~&£EE
breakdown are listed as follows: BRHENZIEAEAS>ER T

Total: 1,121
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Gender B Z
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By Full-time Part-time
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level
EEER  senior management : 2
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|
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By Middle management
Employment th4 &S I8 [E
level
ERBAR
30 below 30-39 40-49
Age grOUP 30BRIA T 30%395% A0ZE 4957,
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Mainland China : 24
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Employees’ turnover rate are listed as follows: EERAZRNT :
Number of Employees Percentage
EEHE ATt

ot £ st 15 81

S

By Gender
el

® Male
S

© Female

7 1,248 153.51

By Age group
FiRAE B!

® 30 below
305 AT
® 30-39
30E395%,
40-49
40E495%,
® 50-59
50Z595%
© 60 or above
605Kk |

By Geographical region
&

® Hong Kong
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® Macau
SR

Mainland China
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B.2 Employee health and safety

The Group strives to promote safety awareness, improve
occupational environment and reduce occupational risks
and commits to providing a healthy and safe working
environment for its employees. The Group complies
with the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
in all relevant requirements. The business operations
do not involve high-risk or safety-sensitive types of
work. To ensure that the business is operated in a safe
environment and staffs have the necessary knowledge on
work safety, the Group has adopted and implemented
work place safety guidelines for all our staff in the retail
stores which set out the Group’s work safety policies
and promote safety in work sites. The Group has also
conducted training sessions for employees to increase
their knowledge of correct practices for health and safety
in work place.

Accidents that occur in the work place will be reported
to and handled by the human resources department
to ensure injuries that occurred in the work place will
be properly recorded, insurance claims and treatments
are effectively pursued to protect the employees and
the Group. The Group has not reported any fatalities in
relation to its work during the reporting period in the
past three years. During the reporting year, the working
day lost due to work-related injury during the reporting
period was 568 days.
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B.3

Apart from raising the health and safety standard in
the Group’s working environment, the management
of the Group also swiftly responded to emergencies to
safeguard work’s health and safety of employees. The
Group has several policies to protect its staff during the
outbreak of the coronavirus epidemic, such as regular
disinfection arrangements at offices and retail stores,
provision of protective face masks and disinfection
supplies to all staff and the adoption of flexible working
hours for all office and warehouse staffs to avoid the
high risk of infection in public transportation during
peak hours. If any of our staff is showing signs of
COVID-19 infections, our Group will arrange for staff to
perform Rapid Antigen Test (RAT) and send the result
to their department head. Daily cleaning of the stores is
conducted and deep cleaning will be conducted at any
stores where staff is test positive for COVID-19.

During the year, the Group had no non-compliance case
regarding violation of relevant laws and regulations on
occupational health and safety.

Development and training

Enabling the Group’s employees achieve their full
potential will ultimately benefit the Group in its future
development plans. The Group provides various types
of training to enhance the competency of our staff. For
the newly recruited employees, orientation trainings
for understanding the company background, code of
conduct, workplace health & safety, customer service
and grooming standard were provided. The Group also
provided operations technical trainings, supervisory
skill trainings, anti-corruption trainings to all staff to
educate the employees on the duties to comply with
statutory obligations. A series of supervisory skill training
were conducted to store-in-charge to enhance their
competency.

B.3
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The Group is committed to improve the training programs
to fulfill the needs of business operations and employees’
personal development. During the reporting year, the
Group modified the contents of orientation, operations
technical and supervisory skill training. In addition, the
Group provided training and useful information to
enhance employees’ supervisory skills and anti-corruption
knowledge.

Training information is listed as follows:

Percentage of employees trained (%)
BEZEINEET (%)

Overall

g

By Gender
gz

® Male
S

© Female

foqis

By Employment level

TR R

® Senior management
BREEE

® Middle management
TREEE

General staff
AEET

AEBH N TEEIEE - A ER
LENEREAZRRNFTE - RBEF
B - REEERAR - 2ERMAE
BRIGHEIENIAE - bt A%KHE
TEREENIRERER - LINRES
MEERNMREISHH o

BRAEJIERDT

Average training hours
Fig5E I R
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B.4

B.5

The Group also supports employees’ personal
development through attending external trainings. The
Group would provide sponsorship for the employees’
personal development. Various types of relevant seminars
or training courses are recommended to employees via
email and they can choose to register either in person or
through the Company.

Labour standards

The Group ensures equal opportunities for all employees
and job applicants, particularly in recruitment, internal
transfer, and promotion. Discrimination based on gender,
age, religious belief, race, or any physical disability is
strictly prohibited. Applicants’ identities would be verified
during recruitment process. The Group strictly prohibits
the use of child labour and forced or compulsory labour
at all its business units, and highly values and strictly
abides by all applicable labour laws and regulations on
employment in Hong Kong. If child or forced labour is
discovered, the Group will terminate the employment
contract immediately and assist the child to resume
education and contact social workers to follow up.
During the year, the Group did not identify any non-
compliance cases regarding violation of relevant child
labour and forced labour laws.

Supply Chain Management

To maintain a quality, trendy and broad appeal product
mix in the retail stores with competitive prices, the
selection of suppliers is crucial in decision-making. The
Group generally maintains stable business collaborative
relationships with the existing suppliers to regularly
review new brands and products available in the
market countries around the world to keep abreast
of information on new products available in the
international market. During the reporting year, the
Group stopped attending international trade shows and
business delegations due to the epidemic situation.

B.4

B.5
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The Group has maintained a list of suppliers and typically
works with trustworthy suppliers possessing a reliable
corporate background, trading history and reputation.
All of the potential suppliers would be screened by
standardised criteria for evaluating the qualifications.
Documents such as manufacturing and analysis
certificates, health certificates, certificates of origin and/
or attestations, and certificates in relation to food or
products safety and/or quality manufacturing process of
the products, may need to be provide by the potential
supplier for the screening process.

During the reporting year, the Group has engaged a total
of 432 suppliers and 100% of the suppliers undergo
supplier screening process. The geographical region
breakdown of the Group’s suppliers is shown as follows:

AEEER—MHHERRE  WaRE
BERREEES  EHTHEREE
HEGEBRNHREREE - IEEBEH
ERSSRIERECERIRSZEE - A
FHEEER - REFERBRET - BEHE
BRI ReR RIEHAEROWER - @&
BE - REMEE R HER  URE
RRRERLER/RERNEERZ
HEAMNEESEXM -

RmEFER - AKEES HA32EH
ERBFEBHE - Eh100% 98B T
HEmEDE - NEEHEEmE IS M
LU

Number of suppliers

HEEREE
China 64
Hong Kong &% 275
Asia o 55
Europe B 27
North America 3E3EM 2
South America FZEM 1
Australia & New Zealand 8 & #7468 4
Other Hfth 4
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Choose the Right Partners Referencing to
International Standards

We encourage our suppliers to adopt responsible
and sustainable practises with respect to a range of
environmental and social issues when engaging with new
suppliers. This process gives preference to suppliers which
integrate considerations for environmental conservation,
protection of endangered species, protection of labour
rights and welfare, equal opportunities, non-participation
in animal testing, and responsible sourcing into their
own operations. When selecting logistics partners for the
distribution of goods from our central warehouse to our
stores, environmental protection is one of our selection
criteria.

During the Financial Year under review, the Group
implemented an ESG Supplier Assessment policy that
makes it mandatory to assess its major suppliers regarding
its ESG practices during the tender process. In this
way, the Group will endeavour to achieve a balance of
sourcing from suppliers that offer competitive pricing and
quality goods and to excluding suppliers that have do not
comply with the Group’s requirements on environmental
protection, employee health and rights, information
security and ethics. The ESG Supplier Assessment also
gives preference to those that offer products that have
positive environmental and/or social characteristics, such
as products with recycled packaging or manufactured by
small local businesses.
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B.6

The Group would review approved suppliers periodically
in aspects of product quality, services standard and
reputation to ensure product quality and services are
maintained at a satisfactory level. The Group would
access the appropriateness of packaging of products
provided by individual approved suppliers on their arrival,
the consistency of quality between sample products
and products ordered and delivered, any quality issue(s)
on products provided by individual approved suppliers
and its/their nature and materiality of such issue(s) and
the overall satisfactory level on the quality of products
provided by individual approved suppliers collected
from customers’ suggestion. Recommendations would
be provided to suppliers which are unable to meet the
guiding standards for periodical review, the suppliers will
be removed from the list of suppliers until appropriate
remedial measures are taken to the Group's satisfaction.

Product responsibility

The Group puts great efforts into maintaining product
quality and safety including establish procedures to
ensure that the products procured are in full compliance
with the food safety, food labelling and consumer goods
safety-related laws and regulations in Hong Kong. The
Group has set up a quality control team and they are
responsible for monitoring and assessing the compliance
of products to be procured with the relevant Hong Kong
laws and regulations before placing purchase orders.
Relevant documents or certificates that could warrant
the accuracy and completeness of products should be
provided by the suppliers. The Group’s logistic team
performs designated quality check procedures and checks
the inclusion of printed label information on product
packages or the status of affixation of applicable product
labels on such products at the warehouse. The products
are checked regularly in store by the front-line sales to
maintain the safety and quality of the in-store inventory
and to ensure relevant product labels are duly affixed.

B.6
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During the reporting year, an independent food testing
laboratory had been engaged to conduct laboratory
tests that are necessary on its private label products to
safeguard and ensure the compliance of relevant laws
and regulations for such original equipment manufacturer
products, such as product labels requirements and to
uplift food safety standard.

The Group is committed to complying with relevant
laws and regulations on customer data protection and
privacy. The personal information of customers collected
by the Group through the membership scheme are kept
in strict confidence and is only used for specific intended
purposes. The Group has established internal guidelines
to ensure compliance with the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance of Hong Kong.

The Group implements a complaint handling procedure.
When the Group receives customer complaints, the
information of the customers and corresponding
stores is recorded. The record is kept for three years in
the Customer Service Department. Each complaint is
investigated and recommendations of solutions, responses
and/or decisions is provided post-investigation. Exchange
or refund is offered if the complaint is valid and is about
unsatisfactory product quality. During the reporting
year, the Group has received 528 complaints about
products and services and no products were required to
be recalled. In the event of any recall announced by the
government, notified by media, requested by suppliers
or identified during product monitoring process, we will
arrange the goods to be removed from shelves and notify
the staffs on the suspension of sales of these products.
All relevant departments will be informed for following
up the incident. Media and PR agencies are notified after
our investigation when appropriate. The Group will also
share the information with the government department
upon request.
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The Group is committed to complying with relevant
laws and regulations such as Colouring Matter in Food
Regulations (Cap.132H), Sweeteners in Food Regulations
(Cap.132U), Food Adulteration (Metallic Contamination)
Regulations (Cap.132V), Consumer Goods Safety
Ordinance (Cap. 456), Trade Descriptions Ordinance
(Cap. 362), Food Safety Ordinance (Cap. 612), etc. that
constitutes a significant impact on the Group in relation
to health and safety, labelling and privacy matters. The
Group’s QA department would perform the random
checking of the goods including packaging and food
labels regularly, the goods department would need to
reprint the correct label and the packaging department
would re-packed the goods if the label is wrong or the
packaging quality is not up to standard. The Group
would accept the punishment for any violations of laws
and regulations. The Group did not have any material
product non-compliance for the year ended 31 March
2023.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group respects intellectual property rights and is
committed to observe and comply with the relevant laws
including the Copyright Ordinance (Cap. 528 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and the Trade Marks Ordinance (Cap.
559 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group regularly
consults its legal advisor on any potential issues relating
to infringement of intellectual property rights of third
parties. In addition, in an effort to protect the Group’s
intellectual property rights and interests, the Group's
trademarks have been duly registered and the Group
will take prompt action to respond to any violation of
its intellectual property rights upon detection, including
but not limited to obtaining legal advice from its legal
advisor on any course of legal action available. During
the Financial Year under Review, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations concerning the intellectual property
and privacy of its products and services that may have a
significant impact on the Group.
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B.7 Anti-corruption B.7

The Group is strongly against bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering and is committed to the
highest possible standards of openness, probity and
accountability. The Group had issued guidelines to the
employees on red packets or gifts offered to them during
Chinese New Year. All employees must fully comply with
the relevant laws and regulations as well as the Group'’s
corruption prevention policies.

During the reporting year, anti-corruption trainings were
conducted for executive directors and staffs to enhance
their understanding of the anti-corruption laws as well as
to enhance ethical management and staff integrity. The

breakdown of training is shown as follows:

Y

RES

AEBERREETERGE - $5R © #GF
FOAEBBEITR - WAERFLR - BRZ
EBEHNRRIEE - AEBCDHEER
BEMFWZABIBYELIES -
BREGVATEETHRER AR
AR AR EBE T EBR

RBEFER - BIRATESERET
BRESEPIRIERE - ARIRTHERE
BLETHE  EAREERRESHE
Al - AN BT

Number of directors who have received anti-corruption training 2
EXRESEINEZHE

Number of staff who have received anti-corruption training 1,110
BEXRESEINEIHE

Employees are encouraged to report any misconduct or
dishonest activity, such as suspected corruption, fraud
and other forms of criminality to the audit committee,
board of directors or the chief executive officer. During
the reporting year, the Group did not identify any non-
compliance cases with laws and regulations in relation
to corruption nor was there any concluded legal case
regarding corruption practices brought against it or its
employees.
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B.8 Community investment

To maintain a high standard of corporate governance,
the Group acknowledges the importance of enhancing
its transparency to the community. The Group actively
participates in various community involvement programs
or charity events to support the development of healthy
life, to cater the needs of local community, to enhance
fraternal cooperation in the community and to create a
better community.

The Group has actively participated in environmental
protection activities and has been accredited the
Certificate of Merit of “"Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence” by Hong Kong Productivity
Council.

The Group has been accredited as “Caring Company” by
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service for 2022-2023.
During the reporting year, the Group has participated
in various community involvement programs and charity
events, they are listed as follows:

On 4 April 2022, the Group donated 2,500 Rapid
Antigen Tests kits and over 200 boxes of adult and kids
face masks to Children’s Residential Home under the
Hong Kong Society for the Protection of Children to
fight against the pandemic situation. Over 200 staffs and
children from the facility benefited from this event.

To ease the economic pressure of low-income families
having the need to meet daily COVID-19 rapid antigen
test (RAT) arrangements for students to attend face-to-
face classes, the Group donated 15,000 Rapid Antigen
Tests kits to 6 schools under the association of Fung
Kai Public School on 12 May 2022. Over 750 students
benefited from this event.

To celebrate the 25th anniversary of the establishment of
the HKSAR, on 2 July 2022, the Group collaborated with
6 members of the Legislative Council, 1,200 goodie bags
were delivered to the underprivileged elders, with a total
value of over HKD92,000.

To encourage the development of self-learning ability, on
2 September 2022, the Group collaborated with Fung Kai
No.1 Primary School to launch a caring program, book
coupons were delivered to students who completed the
pre-determined learning goals.

On 22 December 2022, the Group donated $50,000
to a family for which the breadwinner of the family has
been killed in a deadly industrial accident at Anderson
Road Quarry in Sau Mau Ping, to express condolence and
provide temporary support to the family.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EE &%

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group is
principally engaged in the retail sale of prepackaged leisure foods
and other grocery products, which can be broadly categorised into (i)
confectioneries; (i) packaged bakery products and snacks; (iii) nuts
and dried fruits; (iv) grain and other miscellaneous food products;
(v) beverages and wine; (vi) personal care products; and (vii) other
products. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Financial Year
under Review and a discussion of the Group’s future development
are set out in the Chief Executive Officer’s Statement on pages 7 to
9 of this report and the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 18 to 35 of this report. These discussions form part of this
Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s business operation, financial condition and results
may be affected by certain risks and uncertainties pertaining to the
Group's business. Major risks and uncertainties are summarized
below which are by no means exhaustive or comprehensive. There
may be other risks in addition to these shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could
turn out to be material in the future.

e our ability to identify suitable locations for new retail stores
and successfully negotiate lease agreement for these locations
on terms acceptable to us;

e our ability to obtain sufficient financing for our expansion,
investments or other strategic transactions;
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e our ability to attract, train and retain management talents
required for our expanded operations;

e our ability to obtain all the requisite governmental approvals,
licences and permits in a timely manner;

e our ability to effectively control and manage our costs in our
expanded retail store network, in particular, purchase costs,
and expenses related to rent, logistics, human resources and
marketing; and

e our ability to identify new suppliers and supply sources at
reasonable prices.

Risks related to the global and local economic environment

While the COVID-19 outbreak has gradually receded, the war
between Russia and Ukraine continues and the geopolitical tensions
have intensified. In addition, there is increasing uncertainty from
upheaval of European and American financial institutions, slowing
the pace of global economic recovery which had just begun in the
post-epidemic era. In April 2023, the International Monetary Fund,
in its “World Economic Outlook Report”, lowered the projected
global economic growth rate for 2023 to 2.8%, and expected risks
to the economic outlook to persist. The report stated that inflation
remains high and global financial conditions may tighten further,
leading the ever lower economic growth.

Also, the report pointed out that the major factors affecting the
global economy in 2022 seem set to continue into this year. It
predicted that if risks to financial institutions are contained, the
global economic growth rate will lower from 3.4% in 2022 to
2.8% in 2023. But if pressure on financial institutions increases,
the rate of global economic growth may decline to 2.5% in 2023.
This would mark the weakest period of global economic growth
since 2001, except for the Global Financial Crisis in 2009 and the
epidemic in 2020.
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Despite improvement in supply chain operations, uncertainties
in the global economy and business environment may lead to
fluctuating exchange rates. As the Group adheres to its global
procurement policy by sourcing products worldwide, as well as
for its new global wine and food brand “FoodVille”, the Group's
purchase cost, which are typically settled in foreign currencies, may
increase, negatively impacting profitability.

The epidemic stabilized in Hong Kong last year. Travel between
Hong Kong and other regions resumed as local anti-epidemic
measures were lifted. With the boost from tourism, Hong Kong's
economy is expected to experience a sustained, consumer-driven
recovery, improving the short-term prospect. However, challenges
remain. The global economic slowdown and rising interest rates still
pose risks to the outlook of local economic growth. It will take time
for the economy to fully recover from the impacts brought about
by the epidemic. The Group's business and operation still face
challenges going forward.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

A discussion on the environmental policy and performance of the
Group during the Financial Year under Review is set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 54-82 of
this report. The Environmental, Social and Governance Report form
part of this Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Financial Year under Review, as far as the Board and
management are aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on the businesses and operations of
the Group.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its
immediate and long-term business goals. During the year ended 31
March 2023, there was no material and significant dispute between
the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$330,445,000 (2022: approximately
HK$329,688,000).

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 114 and note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Financial Year under Review and up to the
date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lin Tsz Fung (Chairman)
Ms. Hui Ngai Fan

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Sze Irons

Ms. Choy So Yuk
Mr. Lee Ka Lun
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There have been no changes in Directors during the Financial Year
under Review.

Article 84(1) of the articles of association of the Company (" Articles
of Association”) provides that at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years. According to Article 84(2), the
Directors to retire by rotation shall be those who have been longest
in office since their last re-election or appointment and so that as
between persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on
the same day those to retire shall (unless otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. Accordingly, Ms. Hui Ngai Fan,
Ms. Choy So Yuk and Mr. Lee Ka Lun shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM in accordance with the Articles of Association.
Ms. Hui Ngai Fan and Ms. Choy So Yuk will retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENTS

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 36 to 40 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS/LETTERS OF
APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company, pursuant to which each of them agreed to act as
an executive Director for an initial term of three years commenced
from 11 January 2019, i.e. the Listing Date. The term of the service
agreement shall be renewed and extended automatically for
successive terms of one year upon the expiry of the then current
term until terminated by not less than six months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company, pursuant to which each
of them agreed to act as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company for an initial term of three years commenced
from 11 January 2019, i.e. the Listing Date. The term of the letter
of appointment shall be renewed and extended automatically for
successive terms of one year upon the expiry of the then current
term until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other.
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Save as disclosed, none of the Directors has or is proposed to enter
into a service contract or letter of appointment with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without the payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” in this
section, no transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance to
which the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which any Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Financial
Year under Review or at any time during the Financial Year under
Review.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO"))
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he or she is taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which will be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which will be required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, will be as
follows:
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Interest in the Shares of the Company RAD T RGN ER
Approximate
percentage
Class and of the issued
number of Shares as at
issued Shares Long/Short 31 March
Name of Director Nature of interests held position 2023
R=-B=-=F
=A=+—H
e 81T HE BT
B4 251 IR A7 Y
EEnA REmME kRBE #HE %2 BHOADL
Mr. Lin Tsz Fung Interest in controlled 375,000,000 Long position 37.5%
corporation ordinary Shares
(Note 1)
MFIEFRLE MREHEE R 375,000,000 4TE
& sm A%
(Bfaz1)
Ms. Hui Ngai Fan Interest in controlled 375,000,000 Long position 37.5%
corporation ordinary Shares
(Note 2)
RS L MG EE R 375,000,000 &
=gl
(Hizt2)
Notes: Miat -

1. These 375,000,000 Shares are directly held as to 206,250,000 Shares (being 1.
approximately 20.63%) by United East Global Limited (“United East”) and as to
168,750,000 Shares (being approximately 16.87%) by Universal Tycoon Limited
("Universal Tycoon”), both of which in turn were wholly-owned by Mr. Lin Tsz
Fung. Mr. Lin Tsz Fung is therefore deemed to be interested in the aggregate of
375,000,000 Shares held by United East and Universal Tycoon under the SFO.

2. These 375,000,000 Shares are directly held as to 200,000,000 Shares (being 2.
20%) by Sea Wealth Ventures Limited (“Sea Wealth"), as to 95,000,000 Shares
(being 9.5%) by Sino Sea Enterprises Limited (“Sino Sea"”) and as to 80,000,000
Shares (being 8%) by Giant Blessing Global Limited (“Giant Blessing”), all of
which in turn were wholly-owned by Ms. Hui Ngai Fan. Ms. Hui Ngai Fan is
therefore deemed to be interested in the aggregate of 375,000,000 Shares held
by Sea Wealth, Sino Sea and Giant Blessing under the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the
Directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or are
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

CONFIRMATIONS OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on such
confirmation, the Company considers that all of its independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Connected
in this
section, no transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance to

Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions”

which the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a shareholder had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Financial
Year under Review or at any time during the Financial Year under
Review.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2023, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of
the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part

FERRIERKE

RIZB-_=F=A=+—H BEEMFRMA T
IIANL(BFEHARABHZESITHRABRINKAR
AR AR R A ESOA R M AREE
#H M EFEGBIEXVERE2 K35 B IR M A AT
BT AERIRZREE AR SAKE A

XV of the SFO or, who were directly or indirectly interested in 5%

or more of the issued voting shares of the Company or any other

member of the Group:

A B AR EBITNEREEBMN 5% AL -

Approximate
percentage of
total issued
shares of the

Class and Company as at

Nature of number of 31 March

Name of Shareholder = Company concerned interests securities held 2023

R=B=Z=F

=H=+—H

EARAF

2 BITR®G

s % BB

BREEHB AT EmtE HRIR#E BREDE

United East (Note 1) the Company Beneficial owner 206,250,000 20.63%
ordinary shares
B ERIRIR (A5 1) Z/NS] EmlEA A 206,250,0004%
LA

Universal Tycoon (Note 1) the Company Beneficial owner 168,750,000 16.87%
ordinary shares
BT (K1) ZA/NS] EmEAA 168,750,000/%
gl

Sea Wealth (Note 2) the Company Beneficial owner 200,000,000 20.00%
ordinary shares
BERIR(HAE2) /NS BmEEA 200,000,0004%
Rl

Sino Sea (Note 2) the Company Beneficial owner 95,000,000 9.5%

FHLENE2) ZA/NC)

BEafBA

ordinary shares
95,000,000/%
R il
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Approximate
percentage of
total issued
shares of the

Class and Company as at
Nature of number of 31 March
Name of Shareholder = Company concerned interests securities held 2023
R-EB-=F
=A=+—H
EARAF
2B TRG
RS BEH
BRRER BB N ERtE ERIRBE BHEIL
Giant Blessing (Note 2) the Company Beneficial owner 80,000,000 8.0%
ordinary shares
SRR (A AE2) RN EmEAA 80,000,0004%
LA
Ms. Lee Wai Bing (Note 3) the Company Interest of spouse 375,000,000 37.50%
ordinary shares
FEKRL L (H773) /NS AoiBtEm 375,000,0004%
Rl
China Merchants Hoi the Company Beneficial Owner 490,000,000 49.0%
Tung Trading ordinary shares
Company Limited
FERSBRESARAR ARE BEHEBEAA 490,000,0004%
LA
China Merchants the Company Interest of controlled 490,000,000 49.0%
Holdings (Hong Kong) corporation ordinary shares
Co. Ltd (Note 4)
HEaREER(EE) /NS MREHEE R 490,000,0004%
BRAA] (Htat4) e
China Merchants Steam  the Company Interest of controlled 490,000,000 49.0%
Navigation Company corporation ordinary shares
Limited (Note 4)
FrERwmm AR AR P N/NE] REEHEE S 490,000,0004%
(Ki7t4) LA
China Merchants Group  the Company Interest of controlled 490,000,000 49.0%

SIS E ]

ZA/NS]

corporation

(Note 4)
REZEEEE R

(Htat4)

ordinary shares

490,000,0000%
EiBI
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Notes:

1. Each of United East and Universal Tycoon is wholly owned by Mr. Lin Tsz Fung.
Under the SFO, Mr. Lin Tsz Fung is deemed to be interested in the same number
of shares held by United East and Universal Tycoon respectively. On 27 March
2023, Mr. Lin Tsz Fung entered into a formal sale and purchase agreement with
China Merchants Hoi Tung Trading Company Limited (the “CMHT"), in relation
to the sale and purchase of 245,000,000 Company'’s Shares.

2. Each of Sea Wealth, Sino Sea and Giant Blessing is wholly owned by Ms. Hui
Ngai Fan. Under the SFO, Ms. Hui Ngai Fan is deemed to be interested in
the same number of shares held by Sea Wealth, Sino Sea and Giant Blessing
respectively. On 27 March 2023, Ms. Hui Ngai Fan entered into a formal sale
and purchase agreement with CMHT, in relation to the sale and purchase of
245,000,000 Company'’s Shares

3. Ms. Lee Wai Bing is the spouse of Mr. Lin Tsz Fung. Under the SFO, Ms. Lee Wai
Bing is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Lin Tsz
Fung is interested.

4. CMHT is controlled as to 99% by China Merchants Holdings (Hong Kong) Co.
Ltd, which was controlled as to 100% by China Merchants Steam Navigation
Company Limited. China Merchants Steam Navigation Company Limited was
controlled as to 100% by CMG. Under the SFO, CMG, China Merchants Steam
Navigation Company Limited and China Merchants Holdings (Hong Kong) Co.
Ltd were deemed to be interested in the Shares in which the Purchaser was
interested in.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the scheme as disclosed in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, at no time during the year ended 31 March
2023 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate. As at the date of this report, no share
option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or in existence during the Financial Year under
Review.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and top five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 18 December 2018, the Company adopted a share option

scheme (“Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share Option

Scheme are set out below:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

(b)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the

Group to grant options to selected participants as incentives or

rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The Directors (including a duly authorised committee thereof)

may, at their absolute discretion, invite any person belonging

to any of the following classes of participants (“Eligible

Participants”), to take up options to subscribe for shares of

the Company (“Shares”):

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

any employee (whether full-time or part-time, including
any executive director but excluding any non-executive
director) of the Company, any of the subsidiaries
("Subsidiaries”) or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in
which the Group holds an equity interest (“Eligible
Employee”);

any directors (including independent non-executive
directors of the Company), any Subsidiary or any Invested
Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
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(9]

(vii) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to
any area of business or business development of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(viii) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group,

and, for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the
options may be granted to any company wholly owned by one
or more Eligible Participants.

Maximum number of Shares

(i)  the maximum number of Shares which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme adopted by
the Group shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue
from time to time;

(i)  the total number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all options (excluding, for this
purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group) to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the Shares in issue on 11 January 2019 i.e. the
Listing Date (i.e. not exceeding 100,000,000 Shares) (the
“General Scheme Limit"”), provided that:
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(aa)

Subject to paragraph (i) above and without prejudice
to paragraph (bb) below, the Company may issue
a circular to its Shareholders and seek approval
of its Shareholders in general meeting to refresh
the General Scheme Limit provided that the total
number of Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
Scheme of the Group must not exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
limit, and for the purpose of calculating the limit,
options (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed or exercised in accordance with the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Group) previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Group will not be counted. The circular sent
by the Company to its Shareholders shall contain,
among other information, the information required
under Rule 17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules and
the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the
Listing Rules.

Subject to paragraph (i) above and without prejudice
to paragraph (aa) above, our Company may seek
separate Shareholders’ approval in general meeting
to grant options beyond the General Scheme
Limit or, if applicable, the refreshed limit referred
to in paragraph (aa) above to Eligible Participants
specifically identified by our Company before such
approval is sought. In such event, our Company
must send a circular to its Shareholders containing
a generic description of the specified participants,
the number and terms of options to be granted,
the purpose of granting options to the specified
participants with an explanation as to how the terms
of the options serve such purpose and such other
information required under Rule 17.02(2)(d) of the
Listing Rules and the disclaimer required under Rule
17.02(4) of the Listing Rules.
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(d) Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

(e)

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
(including both exercised or outstanding options) to each
Eligible Participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue for the time being. Where any
further grant of options to a grantee under the Share Option
Scheme would result in the Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted to
such person (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Group in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such further grant representing
in aggregate over 1% of the Shares in issue, such further
grant must be separately approved by the Shareholders in
general meeting with such grantee and his close associates
(or his associates if the grantee is a connected person)
abstaining from voting. The Company must send a circular to
the Shareholders and the circular must disclose the identity
of the grantee, the number and terms of the options to be
granted (and options previously granted to such grantee), the
information required under Rule 17.02(2)(d) of the Listing
Rules and the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the
Listing Rules. The number and terms (including the exercise
price) of options to be granted to such participant must be
fixed before Shareholders’ approval and the date of board
meeting for proposing such further grant should be taken as
the date of grant for the purpose of calculating the exercise
price under the Listing Rules.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years commenced on the adoption date, i.e. 18 December
2018. The remaining lift of the Share Option Scheme is around
5.5 years.
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(f)

(9)

Time of acceptance and exercise of option

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days
from the date of the offer of grant of the option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on the date on which the offer
for the grant of option is made but shall end in any event
not later than 10 years from the date on which the offer for
the grant of option is made subject to the provisions for early
termination thereof. Unless otherwise determined by the
Directors and stated in the offer of the grant of options to a
grantee, there is no minimum period required under the Share
Option Scheme for the holding of an option before it can be
exercised.

Subscription price for Shares and consideration for the
option

The subscription price per Share under the Share Option
Scheme shall be determined at the absolute discretion of the
Directors, provided that it shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date on which
the offer for the grant of option is made, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
business days immediately preceding the date on which the
offer for the grant of option is made; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Shares.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of

Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige

the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed Shares during the Financial
Year under Review.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as of 31 March 2023 are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Details of the Group’s remuneration policy are set out in the section
“Employees Remuneration Policies” of the Management Discussion
and Analysis on page 33 of this report.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 11
to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Due to the nature of the retail business of the Group, for the year
ended 31 March 2023, walk-in customers from the general public
are the major customers.

The total amount of sales to our top five customers is less than
30% of the Group's total sales.

The total amount of purchases from our top five suppliers is less
than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company, and so far as the Directors are aware of, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float during the year ended 31
March 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2023, save for Mr. Lin Tsz Fung who is also the
chairman and chief executive officer of other retail stores in Hong
Kong principally engaged in the sales of footwear and lifestyle
products as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 28
December 2018, none of the Directors and substantial shareholders
of the Company and its subsidiaries, or their respective close
associate, had interests in businesses which compete or are likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Company and its subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules. Given the overall nature of such retail products
of Mr. Lin’s other business are substantially different from the
principal products of the Company i.e. prepackaged leisure food,
the Directors are of the view that the competition between such
retail businesses of Mr. Lin and the Group is relatively minimal and
remote.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Lin Tsz Fung and Ms. Hui Ngai Fan has confirmed to
the Company of their full compliance with the non-competition
undertakings and other terms provided to the Company under the
deed of non-competition dated 27 December 2018 (the “Deed of
Non-Competition”).

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status
of compliance of the Deed of Non-Competition and confirmed that
all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have been
complied with and duly enforced during the year ended 31 March
2023.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to date of this report,
the Company has in force indemnity provisions for the benefit of
the Directors. The permitted indemnity provisions are provided
according to the Articles of Associations and the Company has
maintained the directors and officers liability insurance in respect of
potential liability and costs associated with any legal proceedings
which may be brought against the Directors of the Company.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group or
existed during the Financial Year under Review.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

There was no transaction which needed to be disclosed as
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions carried out
in the ordinary course of business are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements. All of the said related party
transactions constitute continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Please refer to the section above
headed “Connected transactions and continuing connected
transaction” for details.

DONATIONS

The Group had made charitable or other donations of approximately
HK$751,000 during the Financial Year under Review.
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING

PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since 31 March 2023

and up to the date of this report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year under
Review have been audited by BDO Limited. A resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming AGM of the Company to re-appoint

BDO Limited as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited
Lin Tsz Fung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 5 June 2023
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BEST MART 360 HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Best
Mart 360 Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the "Group”) set out on pages 110 to 192, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT B #Z kMR &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Valuation of inventories

The Group held significant inventories as at 31 March 2023,
which comprised finished goods in respect of food and beverage,
household and personal care products. Inventories are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Management assess the level of write-downs of inventories required
at the reporting date after considering inventory ageing and other
relevant factors. Such assessment involves significant management
judgement and estimation in determining the value of inventories
which will not be recoverable at the reporting date.

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter
because inventories are significant to the consolidated financial
statements and because of the significant degree of management
judgement involved in determining the write-downs of inventories.

Refer to Note 5 “Critical Accounting Judgement and Key Sources
of Estimation Uncertainty” and Note 17 “Inventories” to the
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT & #Z Z kiR &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)
Valuation of inventories (Cont’d)
Our response:

—  obtaining an understanding of and assessing the application
of the Group’s key internal controls over the inventory write-
down assessment process;

—  comparing the cost of goods with third party supplier invoices,
on a sample basis;

—  selecting inventory items, on a sample basis, at the reporting
date and comparing their carrying value with their subsequent
selling prices as indicated in sales invoices subsequent to the
reporting date; and

— assessing the historical accuracy of management’s calculation
of write-downs of inventories at the end of the previous
financial year during the current financial year.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

BASETEH(E)

FEMEGE)

B I EE

— BRI ESEHTFEMRREEEM

RENAORASE A BPES R

- WRUEBRERRARE = SHERNERS
L

— REEEHmEHEFEER - LHERERK
HEELHEER FPIRRRE B RAH
EEE R

— RAPBREFEEARFEELRZEEMN LER K
FEFAHEEF EMOR SRR ERENE o

TSR FRA R E M ER

EXRHEMERAR - HMBEHBE EQF
FHRAMEEFR - ETREREMEHRE LM
FRULH AR BEI RS o

BAEEREMBRENELL NREELMER -
BT EZFEMERBRTAEANERS

A
Amg ©

FBERMESEMHHRENTT - RAINETZ
FIEEMER - HILERT EREMERESD
BIR AP BMR IR PIERDBIET AT ABOIS
AEFEBERBBNEUFFEEAHERRANE
R ERBMERITOHIE  WERMARREMLE
MEEEAERRL  RMUIFE2HREFEEE -
s E - RPILEEAFERERE -

Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited € f3603Z R B R 2 &

Annual Report 2022/2023 E£ERE

105



106

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT B #Z kMR &

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT & #Z Z kiR &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT B #Z kMR &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT & #Z Z kiR &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lau Kin Tat, Terry

Practising Certificate no. P07676

Hong Kong, 5 June 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meREkAMEEKER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

2023 2022

—E_=F —E-—F

Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000

PI5E F#ET FHET

Revenue WA 7 2,305,907 1,983,526

Cost of sales HEK AR (1,488,644) (1,315,872)

Gross profit EA 817,263 667,654

Other income and other gains, net E A A R B Ath U 525 58 8 19,920 875

Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERY (515,266) (457,812)

Administrative and other expenses TR REMFAS (72,996) (69,224)

Operating profit N 248,921 141,493

Finance costs RhE R AR 9 (8,708) (7,309)

Profit before income tax MR PTIER BT S A 10 240,213 134,184

Income tax expense iR Y 12 (39,216) (24,380)

Profit for the year FEmA 200,997 109,804
Profit attributable to owners of KARIEEAR A

the Company JEAGFE % 200,997 109,804
Earnings per share attributable to ZA/NEIEZS DN

owners of the Company: e FRR AR
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — EAR R EE GBI 14 20.1 11.0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

melEs R 2 ERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

2023 2022
—EB-=F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FAT
Profit for the year FEREA 200,997 109,804
Other comprehensive income Hib 2w
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to  HiA[geEFH HIEE
profit or loss BmmIEE -
Exchange differences on translation ERINETEI TR E IS
of overseas operations FREAMIE X Z5E (328) 108
Other comprehensive income for the year, SEHM2HEWE - HKRFHIE
net of tax (328) 108
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2EHKBEE 200,669 109,912
Total comprehensive income for the year DUTEFEEEE
is attributable to: 2HKREAHE
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZ=DN 200,669 109,912
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Annual Report 2022/2023 E£ERE

111



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR &R

AS AT 31 MARCH 2023 R-ZFE—=#=H=1+—H

2023 2022
—E=F T F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
PI5E F#ET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB LRE 15 444,408 442,411
Deposits " 19 42,560 34,311
Deposits paid for purchase of property, EBEAYIE - HE &
plant and equipment RBNEIRE 19 944 782
Deferred tax assets IR IBEE 21 2,311 1,516
490,223 479,020
Current assets REEE
Inventories EN— 17 244,219 217,969
Trade receivables = &S] 18 6,139 5,749
Deposits, prepayments and other Ze - BRFRIER
receivables H b el zh18 19 50,999 67,339
Cash and bank balances B4 MIRTTHES 20 146,047 130,076
447,404 421,133
Total assets BMEE 937,627 900,153
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade payables = AN 22 68,926 75,624
Accruals and other payables FEETE N E b FE S FE 22 42,026 44,116
Bank borrowings RITER 23 79,349 82,981
Lease liabilities HEaE 16 133,218 129,913
Income tax payable RS HR 21,908 16,778
345,427 349,412
Net current assets REEEFE 101,977 71,721
Total assets less current liabilities #&EERASAGE 592,200 550,741
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HEMBRR K

ASAT 31 MARCH 2023 R-ZF—=F=H=+—H

2023 2022
—E_=F —E-F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bi5E FHET FHET
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Accruals and other payables FEstE R N A EN RIS 22 1,919 1,942
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 111,569 110,756
113,488 112,698
Net assets EEFE 478,712 438,043
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to the owners  Z<7 B #EH A JE(L &S
of the Company
Share capital A% 24 10,000 10,000
Reserves e 25 468,712 428,043
Total equity R 478,712 438,043
On behalf of the Directors of the Company REXRATES :
Lin Tsz Fung Hui Ngai Fan
MF i HESEa
Director Director
EE o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEERBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

Foreign
Share Share Other exchange Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve  earnings Total
BEA  ROEE HttRE SHNERE REEF #st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT THT THT THT
(Note 24)  (Note 25)  (Note 25)  (Note 25)
(Wat24)  (BsE25)  (BEE2s)  (FEE25)
At 1 April 2021 RZE-—FMA—H 10,000 329,284  (122,614) - 151,461 368,131
Profit for the year EEHF - - - - 109,804 109,804
Other comprehensive income  E i 2 EU - - - 108 - 108
Total comprehensive income 2z 4 %58 - - - 108 109,804 109,912
Dividend paid (note 13) BARRE (FriE13) - - - - (40,000)  (40,000)
At 31 March 2022 and RZE-—F=A
1 April 2022 =+—BAk
“E-"FMA—H 10,000 329,284  (122,614) 108 221,265 438,043
Profit for the year FEREM - - - - 200,997 200,997
Other comprehensive income  Efh 2 EUE - - - (328) - (328)
Total comprehensive income 2 E W5 4A%E - - - (328) 200,997 200,669
Dividend paid (note 13) BERREMET3) - - = - (160,000) (160,000)
At 31 March 2023 NZEZ=%F
=“A=+—H 10,000 329,284  (122,614) (220) 262,262 478,712
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

mERTMER

2023 2022
—E_=F —E-F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
s FEx FAT
Cash flow from operating activities FEX(KHWIRERE
Profit before income tax M FTIS R RT R A 240,213 134,184
Adjustments for: FEE
Interest income from bank deposits HRITIF KA EWA 8 (1,292) (43)
Finance costs BE KR 9 1,844 1,416
Losses on written-off/disposal of s HEWE BMER
property, plant and equipment, net RGN ERFEE 8 868 367
Interest expenses from lease liabilities TEE& &M ESH X 16 6,864 5,893
Depreciation of property, W - WER
plant and equipment BIBITE 15 184,104 194,847
Written-off of inventories WiEFEE 10 7,576 7,203
Gains on lease modification ME B W 16 (805) -
439,372 343,867
Increase in inventories FEEn (33,827) (26,625)
Increase In trade receivables B 5 FE W R IBIE AN (390) (2,822)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, e~ AN FRIE R E AL YR
prepayments and other receivables R ($En) 8,089 (13,842)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables & ZENZIBECHEL ), &N (6,698) 15,929
(Decrease)/increase in accruals FEETE A R E b BT RIE
and other payables CRLA) /8 (2,592) 4,668
Cash generated from operations K& FERE 403,954 321,175
Income tax paid EATATEH (34,880) (15,299)
Net cash generated from REEKRE
operating activities REREHE 369,074 305,876
Cash flows from investing activities REX£ENRESHE
Purchase of property, BAYE  BER
plant and equipment g (29,075) (25,715)
Payments for reinstatement costs T AHMEER A (220) (759)
Bank interest received EERTTHE 1,292 43
Net cash used in investing activities REXBHARLTE (28,003) (26,431)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
L _\éiﬁlﬁiﬁr%%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

2023 2022
—EBC-=F B F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
g FET FAT
Cash flows from financing activities BIE%(KHWIRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEKFTISRIA = 15,000
Repayments of bank borrowings EEEBITHEN (3.632) (39,515)
Repayment of principal portion of EBEHEARE
the lease liabilities PNz 5) (152,547) (168,910)
Interest paid EATFLE (8,708) (7,325)
Dividend paid B E 13 (160,000) (40,000)
Net cash used in financing activities B E ¥ fr AR & F5 (324,887) (240,750)
Net increase in cash and cash ReERBELEHEEH
equivalents BhnEEE 16,184 38,695
Cash and cash equivalents at FHPEER
beginning of year RE&EEER 130,076 91,312
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNERE R & &)z 2 (213) 69
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRESEEEB
at end of year 146,047 130,076
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

GENERAL

Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
on 24 January 2018. The address of the Company’s registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of
business in Hong Kong is 11/F., C-Bons International Centre,
No. 108 Wai Yip Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in retailing of food and beverage,
household and personal care products under the “Best Mart
360° ({8 1360°)" and “FoodVille” branded stores in Hong
Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region (“Macau”) and
the People Republic of China (“PRC").

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2023 were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors of the Company on 5 June 2023.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group:

° Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

e Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and

Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use

e Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

e Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS IR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Cont’d)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs (Cont’d)

The new or amended HKFRSs that are effective from
1 April 2022 did not have any significant impact on the
Group's accounting policies.

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply

these changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements

Amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements

HK Interpretation 5
(Revised) Presentation
of Financial Statements

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture3
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies!

Definition of Accounting
Estimates!

Deferred tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction’

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?

Classification by the
Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand
Clause?

Sale or Contribution of
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BT BB HREEL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont’d) ([BEBBEHREER ) (Z)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) TEMEERERNHEEBTES

not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses
to disclose immaterial accounting policy information,
such information must not obscure material accounting
policy information.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the
impact that the application of the amendments will have
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Cont’d)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 8 - Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to be
measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty
— that is, the accounting policy may require such items
to be measured at monetary amounts that cannot be
observed directly and must instead be estimated. In such
a case, an entity develops an accounting estimate to
achieve the objective set out by the accounting policy.
Developing accounting estimates involves the use of
judgements or assumptions based on the latest available,
reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the
impact that the application of the amendments will have
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

RANE B B S R 2 R
(TEBMBHREER D) (E)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) TEMEERERNHEEBTES

not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 12 - Deferred tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 so
that it does not apply to such transactions as leases and
decommissioning provisions that, on initial recognition,
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary

PSR E LR ()

EEETERF 1251577 — R E
—XREHELHEERE EERHIIEL
#wE

BRI A EE BB G ERE 1295
1SR RF24BMERMAEE - 5
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differences. Consequently, entities will need to recognise EREEEAZBNIELNERE
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for BERELEHIBEE NELETIBERE -

temporary differences arising on these transactions.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the
impact that the application of the amendments will have
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 - Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback

The amendments add subsequent measurement
requirements for sale and leaseback transactions that
satisfy the requirements of HKFRS 15 to be accounted
for as a sale. The amendments require a seller-lessee to
determine “lease payments” or “revised lease payments”
such that the seller-lessee would not recognise a gain or
loss that relates to the right of use retained by the seller-
lessee. The amendments also clarify that applying the
requirements does not prevent the seller-lessee from
recognising in profit or loss any gain or loss relating to
subsequent partial or full termination of a lease.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the
impact that the application of the amendments will have
on the Group'’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Cont’d)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation 5
(Revised), Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities
as current or non-current is based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period, specify that
classification is unaffected by expectations about whether
an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of
a liability and explain that rights are in existence if
covenants are complied with at the end of the reporting
period. The amendments also introduce a definition of
‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement refers to the
transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments,
other assets or services.

HK Int 5 (Revised) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The
revision to HK Int 5 (Revised) updates the wordings in the
interpretation to align with the Amendments to HKAS
1 with no change in conclusion and do not change the
existing requirements.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the
impact that the application of the amendments will have
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

RANE B B S R 2 R
(TEBMBHREER D) (E)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) TEMEERERNHEEBTES

not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants (“the 2022 Amendments”)

The 2022 Amendments modify the requirements
introduced by the amendments to HKAS 1 issued in
2020, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current (“the 2020 Amendment”) on how an entity
classifies debt and other financial liabilities with covenants
as current or non-current. The amendments specify
that only covenants with which the entity is required to

PSR E LR ()
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comply with on or before the end of the reporting period ggmmpAsp A mHls 2/ — {F B NIE
affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability BABBEMNER - EERRER%E
for at least twelve months after the reporting date. SPH SRR RS B R 2 B FAE
Covenants which are required to comply with only after WEFTE o

the reporting period do not affect whether that right
exists at the end of the reporting period.

The amendments also specify the disclosure requirements
about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities
could become repayable within twelve months after the
reporting period, if the entity classify liabilities arising
from loan arrangements as non-current when the entity’s
right to defer settlement of those liabilities is subject
to the entity complying with covenants within twelve
months after the reporting period.

The amendments also defer the effective date of the
2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024. The amendments, together
with the 2020 Amendments, are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024,
with early application permitted. If an entity applies the
2020 amendments for an earlier period after the issue of
the 2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply the
2022 Amendments for that period.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the
impact that the application of the amendments will have
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Cont’d)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction with an
associate or joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method, any gains or losses resulting from the loss
of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business
are recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or
joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses resulting from
the remeasurement of retained interest in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint
venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
the new associate or joint venture.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the
impact that the application of the amendments will have
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective
and that would be expected to have a material impact on
the entity in the current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(o)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

3. RREE

(a)

(b)

(9]

BB

RAEMBHRRDERELGINAE
((EREFTMAE ) EMNAEER
BRMBMERER  FEGHER(F
BERER D RRBUATSE B
BRELER ) URBEERREDINHKE
RIEREL - WO HAMBREREES
BBARXHAERAR (BT ) ES
ERRRRERERREER -

TSR TR IR L AR AR EL

DR 25 EH

reapBHmERRET((EBR]) 27
BILMBARAREMBARNINES
% MAAEEBERSBREAEINDEE
ERBANTAE -

4. FESTTHRBE

(a)

EBEHREEEE

RAMBHRABARTLENER R
(TAR&EM@ )R B RRANX - TEMRBUR
EMBHRERNBED  SEERFZMHE
MR AR 5 K As e R AR B E FI

PrEEEELIURE(ELIBERT - A
BMEBRRBENER)  DRRERE
1BIRT DAL

Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited € f3603Z R B R 2 &

Annual Report 2022/2023 E£ERE

125



126

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS IR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

(@) Business combination and basis of consolidation

(Cont'd)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition
or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations using the
acquisition method when the acquired set of activities
and assets meets the definition of a business and control
is transferred to the Group. In determining whether
a particular set of activities and assets is a business,
the Group assesses whether the set of assets and
activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input and
substantive processes and whether the acquired set has
the ability to produce outputs.

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis
is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted from
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Cont'd)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the acquisition
date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
(i) power over the investee, (i) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and (iii) the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS IR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance are recognised in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:
Leasehold improvements Over shorter of the lease
term or 5 years
Plant and equipment 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

4, TEEHTBEBEE)

(d) Government grant

(d) BUFHE

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets (including property, plant and
equipment) are recognised as deferred income in the
statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable and are
recognised as other revenue, rather than reducing the
related expense.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate
of interest is treated as a government grant, measured
as the difference between proceeds received and the
fair value of the loan based on prevailing market interest
rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS IR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #{2 —F—

ZFE=A=F—HIFFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e) Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy
choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i)
leases which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for
which the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group
has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (ii) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. The Group
measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost model.
Under the cost model, the Group measures the right-
of-use assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group accounts for properties and office premise
which are held for own use under HKAS 16 and are
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

4, TEEHTBEBEE)

(e) Leasing (Cont’d) (e) ME(E)

Lease liabilities

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group's
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option
if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in
the lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e) Leasing (Cont’d)

()

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a lease modification that is not
accounted for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using first-in-first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

4, TEEHTBEBEE)

(g) Financial instruments

(9) «@TE

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

CREENERABEDINEEERKA
TRT EQMRXETRT RHER

A financial asset or financial liability (unless it is a trade AR A EFABR (R AFET
receivable without a significant financing component) AB&#WIBEEMS @ SREESSH

is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
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AERSN) MiaiR A FE IR RE S 1T
EERBRNXZUAGE - WEREAH

issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing BRRDHE S EWRIBIIAIER HEE

component is initially measured at the transaction price. FrE o

(i) Financial assets (i) SWMEE
On initial recognition, the Group's financial assets RUATERE  KEBNSRE
are classified as measured at amortised cost. ENBERIREIEKARE -
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to CTREEAVBEREISEN
their initial recognition, except if and in the period S RIEENAEENEHE
the Group changes its business model for managing BEeREEMEBEXANHM -
financial assets. BlItERER ©

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

—  the asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets to collect

contractual cash flows; and

—  the contractual terms of the financial asset give
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rise on specified dates to cash flows that are NEERHRESEASNAR
solely payments of principal and interest on the TRREEREAESNENRE
principal amount outstanding. ME °

The financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using

HHEKAGTENEREERR
RABER N ROK1% 8 5 XA G

the effective interest method. The amortised cost o B8 35 B A R 1B B 48 R
is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, ’J\ FBEUA -~ B X W M EiE
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment A RRESREZE AR o 421k
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on RN AN S EERNIER
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. NFER °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(g) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit loss (“ECL") on the financial assets measured
at amortised cost (including trade and other
receivables and cash and bank balances). The Group
measures loss allowances at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.

Lifetime ECL represent the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECL is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed
to credit risk. For trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
requires the use of the lifetime expected losses
provision for all trade receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

4, TEEHTBEBEE)

(g) Financial instruments (Cont'd) (9) €@IAE)

(i) E=EEERELSEE)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets (Cont’d)

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate).

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECL is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(g) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (Cont’d)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria
are generally not recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants
by the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses on
a forward-looking basis whether financial assets
carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A
financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

4, TEEHTBEBEE)

(g) Financial instruments (Cont'd) (9) €@IAE)

(i) E=EEERELSEE)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets (Cont’d)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Cont’d)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the borrower
or issuer;

—  a breach of contract such as a default or past
due event;

— it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the
consolidated statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the Write-off.
However, financial assets that are written off could
still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

4, TEETBEBEE)

(g) Financial instruments (Cont'd) (9) €EITAE)

(i) 2HEEREHTA

(iii) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group’s financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

4, TEEHTBEBEE)

(g) Financial instruments (Cont'd) (9) €@IAE)

(iv) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the reporting
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and in hand, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash at banks and in hand, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as
to use.
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(iv) BEFIE %

ERMEER-—BAESHMEE
& B B B A B A AR A R
HE A S U AT EFH
W%  BERNEXEZREMEE
KB ENEFFERKCRFIE
BRI - ERRIRMEETR
IR WA TR A HO R

RERREEHEER

AR ERERME RekRes
BERE BERITLFERE - LAKRAIEE
RERSD MRS - BEEZDER
Eif B —RRAUEBR = @A REIHNE
HEmEtRE - THRARESRER
YR ARER S EE 8D MIRITE
% o

IRAMBRAEME  REXREF
BEABRRITATHRRS  BPEE
PR R W0 #iF ok S 1 B
BLUWEE -

Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited € f3603Z R B R 2 &

Annual Report 2022/2023 E£ERE

139



140

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

0)

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits
that can be reliably estimated.

Provision for reinstatement costs represents the present
value of the estimated cost for the restoration work of
the Group's leased retail stores agreed to be carried out
upon the expiry of the relevant leases using a risk-free
pre-tax interest rate. The provision has been determined
by the directors based on their best estimates. The related
reinstatement costs have been included as right-of-use
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

()

(k)

Share-based payment

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
services received is measured by reference to the fair
value of the options at the date of grant. Such fair value is
recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period with a
corresponding increase in the share option reserve within
equity. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into
account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of each reporting period so
that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over
the vesting period is based on the number of options that
eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are factored
into the fair value of the options granted. As long as all
non-market vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge
is made irrespective of whether the market vesting
conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense is not
adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

e property, plant and equipment;

. right-of-use assets; and

. interests in subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case
impairment loss is treated as revaluation decrease under
that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
revaluation increase under HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimate future cash flow
expected to be derived from the asset discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risk specific to the asset or cash generating unit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

4, TEEHTBEBEE)

() Employee benefits (n EEEF

(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term

(i) ERIESHEF

RHEERMNEREENERER
HEBRBOEFERSHRE
TEAARZENHEERET
(BERBAIBRSN) - HEIR BEH
NEERRFEARRBNFEANE

employee benefits are recognised in the year when R o
the employees render the related service.
(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan (i) EFEEFEMLKELFE

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

(m) Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end
of each reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F—=

F=A=A1—HIFFZE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(m) Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

(n)

(o)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange difference arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary item carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for period except for
difference arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange difference are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
these assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing cost capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period which they are incurred.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(o)

Income taxes (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS IR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F—=

F=A=A1—HIFFZE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

(p) Revenue recognition

Sale of goods - retail

The Group sell goods directly to retail customers within
retail stores/warehouse. Revenue recognised from sale of
goods to retail customers is recognised when the product
is transferred to the customers upon sale. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately when the customers
purchase the good. The payment is usually settled in
cash or using credit cards, octopus card and Alipay online
platform.

Sale of goods — wholesale

Sales are recognised at a point in time when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to the wholesaler, the wholesaler has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the products,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that affects the
wholesaler’s acceptance of the products.

Discounts, coupons and other cash incentive to customers
are accounted for as reduction of the transactions prices.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group operates a loyalty programme where retail
customers accumulate points for purchases made which
entitle them to redeem award points for discounts in
future purchases. The transaction price is allocated to
the product and the award points on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Revenue from the award points
is recognised when the award points are redeemed.
Contract liabilities are recognised until the award points
are redeemed. Contract liabilities in relation to customer
loyalty programme were included in “Accruals and other
payables”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(p)

(a)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts
are recognised as a financial liability at the time the
guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at
fair value. The fair value of a financial guarantee contract
is the present value of the difference between the net
contractual cash flows required under a debt instrument,
and the net contractual cash flows that would have been
required without the guarantee. The present value is
calculated using a risk free rate of interest.

At the end of each subsequent reporting period financial
guarantees are measured at the higher of

—  the amount of the loss allowance; and

—  the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation, where appropriate.

The amount of the loss allowance at each subsequent
reporting period initially equal to 12-month ECL.

However, where there has been a significant increase
in the risk that the specified debtor will default on the
contract, the calculation is for lifetime ECL.

(p)

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS IR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., FESTTHRBEE)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

(q) Financial guarantee (Cont'd) (q) HBIERAE)
Expected credit losses for a financial guarantee contract BB ERENNBHEESEARRS
are the cash shortfalls adjusted by the risks that are mERENERFAEAIRSEROD -

specific to the cash flows.

Cash shortfalls are the difference between: HWEMROABUNTME ZBHE5E -

—  the expected payments to reimburse the holder for —
a credit loss that it incurs; and

— any amount that an entity expects to receive from —
the holder, the debtor or any other party.
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(r) Related parties r BEHS

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is (@)
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b)
following conditions apply:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

(r) Related parties (Cont’d)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (Cont'd)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); or

=

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

(viii

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS IR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

(s) Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except interest income, unallocated finance costs, and
unallocated corporate expenses, which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment, are not included in arriving at the operating
results of the operating segment.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the financial statements of the Group
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of each reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future
periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting
period, which have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Group
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available
when the consolidation financial statements were prepared.
However, existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful life and residual value of an item
of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvement in production, or from
a change in the market demand for the products or service
output of the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected
physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset,
and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation
of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of
the Group with similar assets that are used in similar way. The
Group will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and allowance charge/write-back
in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Impairment loss for non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether non-financial assets suffered any impairment in
accordance with accounting policy stated in note 4(k). The
non-financial assets are reviewed for the impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The
determination of recoverable amount requires an estimation
of future cash flows and the selection of appropriate discount
rates. Changes in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying value of the assets and could result
in additional impairment charge or reversal of impairment in
future periods, where applicable.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
Macau. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognised
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will affect the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Provision of reinstatement costs of retail stores and
offices

Most of the Group’s retail stores are leased under operating
lease and are subject to reinstatement obligation as stipulated
in the lease agreements. Management assesses the amount
of provision made for each store and offices based on
various factors, including the size of the store and offices, the
complexity of refurbishment and specific requirements from
landlords. The Group’s management assesses the adequacy
of such provision at the end of each reporting period. As at
31 March 2023, the carrying amount of such provision was
HK$4,125,000 (2022: HK$3,646,000).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group
operates one reportable and operating segment which is the
retailing sales of food and beverage, household and personal
care products under the “Best Mart 360° ({8 51360°)" and
“FoodVille” branded stores in Hong Kong, Macau and the
PRC and wholesaling in Hong Kong. The Group determines its
operating segment based on information reported to executive
directors of the Company who are also the chief operating
decision-maker that are used to make strategic decisions.
Accordingly, the Group does not present separately segment
information.

Geographical segment

The Group's geographical segments are based on the location
of the Group's assets. Revenue to external customers disclosed
in geographical segments are based on the geographical
location of its customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS IR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6.
Geographical segment (Cont’d)

The following table presents revenue and certain non-current
assets information regarding the Group’s geographical
segments as at and for the years ended 31 March 2023 and
31 March 2022.

DEVER(E)
o338 (42

TRERN-ZZ=F=A=+T—HAK=Z
T Z A=+ HURHEZESASILF
ERNAREE S BOWMARE TIEREE
EER -

Hong Kong Macau PRC Total
BB B h st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
31 March 2023 —E-=f=H=+—H
Revenue WA 2,242,462 59,624 3,821 2,305,907
Non-current assets* JEmENE 431,155 11,002 2,251 444,408
31 March 2022 —E-_—_F#=H=+—H
Revenue A 1,921,810 60,749 967 1,983,526
Non-current assets* IEmBNE B 417,519 20,828 4,064 442,411
* Excludes deposits and deferred tax assets. * T EEES ELERIBAE -

Information about major customers

Since none of the Group’s sales to a single customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue for
the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil), no information
about major customers in accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments is presented.

ERIEEENESR

RN AEERE AN EER B AEE
BHE_ZT-_=F=A=+—HILFENKA
BEI10%IA L (ZT-—F - ) > IE
EREAVBREEANESRLL D27
FRTEBTNEN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

REVENUE

The Group principally engages in retailing of food and
beverage, household and personal care products under the
“Best Mart 360° (f85360°)" and “FoodVille” branded stores
in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC and wholesaling in Hong
Kong. All revenue of the Group is recognised at a point in
time.

Revenue from the Group's principal activities during the year is

L'ON

REBE2REBEEE - BRI Best
Mart 360°(252360°) | %[ FoodVille | & h2 /&
HETRBNSE  KEMEAZERERS
EREBBETHE - REBRARAHER
FEAEIRFE BLERR ©

FA - AREEEXHHBRALT -

as follows:

2023 2022
—EBE-=F —E-F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FAT

Revenue from AR
Retailing sales =& 2,296,460 1,979,589
Wholesale 3% 36,142 16,889
Less: Sales discounts A SEEITH (26,695) (12,952)
2,305,907 1,983,526
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS IR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, NET 8. HWARHMUERFEE

2023 2022
—EB-=F T F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Interest income from bank deposits RITIF A2 WA 1,292 43

Losses on written-off/disposal of property, — fifi$s, " HEDE - BMEN
plant and equipment, net HBOEERIFRE (868) (367)
Gains on lease modification HEEHm Wz 805 -
Government grant (Note) RATEBh (B aE) 17,996 -
Others Hib 695 1,199
19,920 875

Note: Wi -

The government grant recognised during the year ended 31 March 2023 is
mainly related to the COVID-19 related subsidy from Employment Support
Scheme of Hong Kong Government. During the year ended 31 March 2023,
the Group recognised government grant of HK$17,996,000 (2022: Nil) from
Employment Support Scheme of Hong Kong Government. The Group has
elected to present this government grant separately, rather than reducing the
related expense. The Group had to commit to spending the assistance on payroll
expenses, and not reduce employee head count below prescribed levels for a
specified period of time. The Group does not have any unfulfilled obligations

relating to this government grant.

REE_Z_=F=ZA=+—HLFERNEZNBT
B EZEFBBTRIE |5 EIFTIRHE COVID-19
HEERER - REE-Z-_—F-A=-+HLEE
A AREBESE SB[ RZE T2 B BRI B
17,996,000 (T - —F : &) - AEEEEB L2
FIZEBUTHE) - MIENRARRB X o AEBERER
ERERET MY ENETHRATEHEEA
R E IR E AR o NS B 48 AT (o] BLEZ BT 44 B
BEENAREITEE -

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BB
2023 2022
—EC-=F B —
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Interest expenses on bank borrowings RITEROF BT 1,844 1,416
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBBENNERX 6,864 5,893
8,708 7,309
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

10. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

10. BRFTSHLATER

N2 AL N

BRPTSTRADE R T3, (Gt A) T3 &R

2023 2022
—E-=F B —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Directors’ emoluments (Note 11(a)) EFRME(HaE11@) 1,476 1,476
Staff costs: BITHKA :
- Wages, salaries and other benefits —I&  #HeNEMER 194,538 173,629
— Contributions to defined contribution — THEIFRIRE T EIHR
pension plans 8,800 7,706
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEMRETE
equipment 184,104 194,847
Auditor remuneration ZE A &
— Audit services —ZE R 1,630 830
— Non-audit services — IEZEURTE 250 240
Exchange differences, net bE 3 ZE 5B R (888) 112
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ¥R & FH X FIFE KA 1,488,644 1,315,872
Written-off of inventories MsEEE 7,576 7,203
Operating lease payments in respect of ERZEEEHNKEHEERIE
retail stores
— Short-term lease expenses — IR ERY 22,978 6,354
— Contingent rents — RS 19,587 17,802
42,565 24,156
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 1. EEFHRAERESTHTMAL
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) E=FHM
The remuneration of the directors for the years is set out AEEEESHNHMETAT
below:

Contributions
Salaries to defined
and contribution

other pension

Fees benefits plans
ERER

Hek BRE

fika Hi ATEIfR

Total

.
st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TERT TAET TET
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-E-=&
SA=tT-HLEEE
Executive directors HiTEZE
Mr. Lin Tsz Fung (“Mr. Lin") MFESE ([ HEE]) - 360 18 378
Ms. Hui Ngai Fan (“Ms. Hui") TRFzL((FaLl) - 360 18 378
Independent Non-Executive directors &/ 5772 %
Mr. Sze Irons MEEREE A 240 - - 240
Ms. Choy So Yuk BzErt 240 - - 240
Mr. Lee Ka Lun FREESAE 240 - - 240
720 720 36 1,476
Contributions
to defined
Salaries  contribution
and other pension
Fees benefits plans Total
SEFRMFR
ek PN
ik E b a7 RSN st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TEL FAEL FET
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-E-—F
SA=t-HLEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Lin by Sted - 360 18 378
Ms. Hui Fat - 360 18 378
Independent Non-Executive directors BV FEEiTEE
Mr. Sze Irons MR A 240 - - 240
Ms. Choy So Yuk BEEat 240 - - 240
Mr. Lee Ka Lun FRBEE 240 - - 240
720 720 36 1,476
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 11.

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Cont’d)

(b) Five highest-paid individuals

The five highest-paid individuals of the Group did not

include any directors for the year ended 31 March 2023

(2022: Nil), whose emoluments are included in Note 11(a)

above. The emoluments of 5 highest-paid individuals for

the year are set out below:

ESHFMREERSHFMAL(E)

(b) EERSHFMAL

BE_Z-_Z—F#=-A=+—HLFE
REE A B & EHA T I EAEM
EF(CTF T FEOWeED
REXHFENM@FPRE - RFEERH
SEaHMALTHISHESNT

2023 2022
—E-=F B F
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET THTT
Salaries and other benefits e M EMEF] 7,632 6,933
Discretionary bonuses FIBETEAL 1,213 789
Contributions to defined contribution ERHTORAR S EIHR
pension plans 20 83
8,935 7,805
Their remuneration fell within the following bands: WENMENTF T oIEE -
2023 2022
—E-=F - F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,000% 7T = 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 L%
2,000,000/ 7T 4 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001/87TE
3,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,00187TE
4,000,000/ 7T 1 1
5 5

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, no
directors or any of the highest-paid individuals waived or

agreed to waive any emoluments. No emoluments were

paid by the Group to the directors or any of the highest-

paid individuals of the Group as an inducement to join

or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.

REBEE_ZE_=FR_T__F=H
=+—HLEFERN BESENENR
BEHMATHREXFRERETAHNE -
REEVESZNME TAEEESNT
fAHE=HMALT - ERRSIEEMAR
EE A IIARE BRI K EA
BB (E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS IR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12. PSRRI

The income tax expense in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the year

FREEAER LA B2 EKERANEH
PSR

represents:
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Current income tax BVEAFRS AL
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —EBBNED 39,004 23,823
— Macau Complementary Income Tax —BPIFTS A
(“mcIT”) (MRFFrEMmIEH ) 511 524
39,515 24,347
— Under-provision/(over-provision) in —BEFEREIRS
respect of prior year (FREERE) 496 (353)
40,011 23,994
Deferred income tax (Note 21) RIEFRS L (Hrat21) (795) 386
Income tax expense FriSHiFx 39,216 24,380

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of Cayman Islands and accordingly, is not subject to
income tax in the Cayman Islands.

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
estimated assessable profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will
be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of other group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

MCIT has been provided at the progressive rate on the
estimated assessable profits. The maximum tax rate is 12% for
the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

AARREREHEARVEERSHEEM
R REHRRBRLDF - W E L HARNG
SHEMEH -

BE T =R _FT-__F=H=1—
WEFE  EFEHMAHEET - 6&8F
SEERE2A BB TGRS
1#28.25% & F - HRIB2E &5 T E A Bl
16.5% =i o H AR & TS B/ AR 6=
RSB A RS EEIE16.5%8 —Fix
B -

) % I

Jaig

SRPIFTS R I E s FERBUEFIA R
BERHE - HE TR T -_—F=
A=+—HIFENHELRA12% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd) 12. FiSHIAX% (&)
No provision of the PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") has BE_T-_=FR-_T-__F=A=+—H
been made as the Group has no assessable profit for CIT for IFFE - ARAEETE B DZEREH
the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022. ([EMRBHR D EGEATES - L mH

EEMABHELEER -

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the AFEEMERASZ AIEGAER L EMER
profit before income tax in the consolidated statement of W R ARG FT ST AR MR T ¢

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2023 2022
—EB-=F - F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FAT
Profit before income tax KR PRAST AR 240,213 134,184
Tax on profit before income tax, calculated gt PS54 Bl K% 8 B
at the applicable Hong Kong profits tax EBNEHRRTENTIE
rates 39,469 21,977
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ 7£ E th Bl ARER AL 2 HY
operating in other jurisdictions M AR E T RN E 79,830 22,284
Tax effect of non-taxable income TERHWARN TS (83,058) (20,895)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AP HAZ R BE T E 197 1,157
Under-provision/(over-provision) BAFEREBETR
in respect of prior years (HBEEEE) 496 (352)
Tax effect of temporary difference not AR EZRNTGTE
recognised 686 209
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTRIBEE RGTE 1,596 -
Income tax expense FriSHi =2 39,216 24,380
13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
2023 2022
—E_= —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Final dividend in respect of previous RS ERFEERERE -
financial year, approved and paid during PARFE R LA R
the year 80,000 25,000
Interim dividend declared and paid Fir & IR A< B9 R R AR S 80,000 15,000
160,000 40,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F—=

F=A=A1—HIFFZE

13.

14.

DIVIDENDS (Cont’d)

On 18 August 2021, a final dividend of HK2.5 cents per share
for the year ended 31 March 2021 was approved by the
Company’s shareholders (“2021 Final Dividend"”). The 2021
Final Dividend of HK$25,000,000 was paid during the year
ended 31 March 2022.

On 26 November 2021, the Board has resolved to pay an
interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per share, amounting to a
total dividend of HK$15,000,000 (“2022 Interim Dividend"),
in respect of the six months ended 30 September 2021. The
2022 Interim Dividend of HK$15,000,000 was paid during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

On 19 August 2022, a final dividend of HK8.0 cents per share
for the year ended 31 March 2022 was approved by the
Company’s shareholders (“2022 Final Dividend"”). The 2022
Final Dividend of HK$80,000,000 was paid during the year
ended 31 March 2023.

On 24 November 2022, the Board has resolved to pay an
interim dividend of HK8.0 cents per share, amounting to a
total dividend of HK$80,000,000 (“2023 Interim Dividend”),
in respect of the six months ended 30 September 2022. The
2023 interim dividend of HK$80,000,000 was paid during the
year ended 31 March 2023.

The Board has decided to convene another Board meeting to
consider the declaration and payment of final dividend for the
financial year ended 31 March 2023, if any, on a date after
the end of the Offer Period (as defined under the Hong Kong
Code of Takeovers and Mergers). Further announcement will
be made as and when appropriate.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company for the year is calculated based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$200,997,000
(2022: HK$109,804,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000 in issue (2022:
1,000,000,000). The Company did not have any potential
dilutive shares for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.
Accordingly, the diluted earnings per share are the same as
the basic earnings per share.

13.

14. 8%

RE(#&)

RZE-_—FN\A+N\B HE2ZZT-_—F
A=t HIFENRBRESFR2.5%8
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Mo T = —F R HIA% 825,000,000 7T
ERBE-_E-_—F=A=+—HIFEK
e

E/\_v__f'ETL H JF/\E! %%Eﬂﬁ
RMEE T —FAA=THIEXEA
KR EAR B BRI 581 IREREA
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E_gzzifﬂf+ Eti&&ﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. 913 ~ BEKRRME

Furniture
Leasehold Office Plant and and
improvements premises Properties equipment fixtures Total
RENERE  BOENE n¥  EEREE ZAREE%E a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT ThTL Th Th Th Th
At 31 March 2021 R-B--F
ZA=t-A
Cost A 44915 178,865 483,615 23513 9,376 740,284
Accumulated depreciation 2t (30,388) (2,523) (261,426) (10,214) (4,135) (308,686)
Net carrying amount EEHE 14,507 176,342 22,189 13,299 5,41 431,598
Year ended 31 March 2022 Bz-%-C
ZAST-HLEE
Opening net carying amount ENERTE 14527 176,342 222,189 13,299 5,241 431,598
Additions NE 21,960 - 158,869 5230 4,851 190,910
Witten off/disposals e/ e (45) - - (209) (139) (393)
Lease modification HEBH - - 15,045 - - 15,045
Depreciation i (15,703) (4,99) (167,315) (4,670 (2,167) (194,847)
Exchange alignment EXEE 2 - 56 17 - 9%
Closing net carrying amount EREEFE 20,764 171,350 228 844 13,667 7,786 4424
At 31 March 2022 R-B-CE
ZA=t-A
Cost R 61,463 178,865 657,529 27,568 13,018 939,043
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (40,699) (7,515) (428,685) (13,907) (5,832) (496,632)
Net carrying amount BEFE 20,764 171,350 228 844 13,667 7,786 44241
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-E-cE
ZAST-ALEE
Opening net carrying amount ENEETE 20,764 171,350 228,844 13,667 1,186 4.
Additions NE 20,107 - 58,341 5,734 3,072 81,254
Witten off/disposals e/ e (@3) - - (512) (313) (868)
Lease modification HEBR - - 100,056 - = 100,056
Depreciation nE (17,858) (4,99) (153,622) (5,091) (2.581) (184,104)
Exchange alignment 3% 1 (57) = (216) (68) = (341)
Closing net carrying amount ERFRTE 2913 166,358 233,403 13730 8,004 444,408
At 31 March 2023 it St
ZA=1-H
Cost A 18,125 178,865 815,926 30,640 15,340 1,119,49
Accumulated depreciation ZiiE (55.812) (12,507) (582,523) (16,910) (7,336) (675,088)
Net carrying amount BEFE 2913 166,358 233,403 13,730 8,004 444,408
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)
Right-of-use assets

As at 31 March 2023, right-of-use assets of HK$399,761,000
(Note 16) (2022: HK$400,194,000) were included in the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment.

Included within additions in 2023 are additions under
leasing arrangements amounting to HK$58,341,000 (2022:
HK$158,869,000) as disclosed in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Security

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with a total carrying value of HK$166,358,000
(2022: HK$171,350,000), are subject to a legal charge to
secure a subsidiary’s bank borrowing with a bank (Note 23).

LEASES

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

The Group entered into various lease agreements for retail
shops, warehouses and office premises. The leases for retail
shops and warehouses have remaining non-cancellable
lease terms of between 1 to 3 years and the lease for office
premises have remaining non-cancellable lease term of 35
years. All leases held by the Group comprise fixed payments
over the lease term or contingent rent based on turnover of
the respective retail shops for the month.

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying assets is as follows:

15.

16.

W% BERRBE)
ERAEEE

R-E-_=F=A=+—H FHAEEE
399,761,000/ 8 L (MsE16) (=22 ==
400,194,000/ 7T) Jyst A% -~ B K&
RIERMEE -

RZFZ=FF AREANTARKRE MY
BmEM 16BN EELH THAE
58,341,000/ 7L(=F = =4 : 158,869,000
ABIL) °

BR

RIE-_=F=ZA=+—8 AEEE@EL
{8/5166,358,000 8 T W% - W/FE Mi&fE

—T - 4 171,350,000/ 7T ) RE A —
AT - MEARITR THBARIRTT
EREIER (FFE23) ©

HE
HEFESHNME(ERERAA)

AEERILTZHETEER  REMPAE
MENREHE - TEEHMEENSR T T
FHEHEIN 1235 - MAEMENRT
TNAHEETEEI 355 - ARBAFENEE
BRTAR AR EE MRS TEEH
BAEXBEENIAEE -

LB ERRE S HEREEEREFE
DT

2023 2022
—EC=F B —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET

Office premises, carried at depreciated WMAEYE - RITERATIER
cost 166,358 171,350

Properties leased for own use, carried at ~ THEEE AW -

depreciated cost LITER TR 233,403 228,844
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

16. LEASES (Cont'd) 16. HE (&)
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee) HETENHEE(ERRBEAN)(E)
(Cont'd)
Office
premises Properties
WAEYE L/ES
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT

At 1 April 2021 R-_ZE-_—FWNA—H 176,342 222,189
Additions NE - 158,869
Depreciation e (4,992) (167,315)
Lease modification fﬂ&ﬂxﬂﬁ( - 15,045
Effects of movements in exchange rates fE R FEA) R - 56
At 31 March 2022 W_T__§=F=+—H 171,350 228,844
At 1 April 2022 RZE-_—_FMA—A 171,350 228,844
Additions NE - 58,341
Depreciation nE (4,992) (153,622)
Lease modification HEBH - 100,056
Effects of movements in exchange rates [EREHHHZE - (216)
At 31 March 2023 W_T_=F=H=+—H 166,358 233,403

The Group elected to include the right-of-use assets within AEEEEBEAEEEFT AR —MPIES

the same line item as that within which the corresponding N R BRERNEEEEREY

underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS IR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

16. LEASES (Cont’d)

16. HE(#&)

LEASE LIABILITIES HEERE
Office
premises Properties
WMAEYE L/ES
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
At 1 April 2021 RZTE-Z—FMHA—H - 236,405
Additions NE - 158,070
Interest expenses B - 5,893
Lease payments HEFE - (174,803)
Lease modification HEBH - 15,045
Exchange realignment HE 34, 8 B - 59
At 31 March 2022 WZZE__F$=A=+—H — 240,669
At 1 April 2022 RZE-_—_FMA—A - 240,669
Additions NE - 57,642
Interest expenses B - 6,864
Lease payments HeEFE - (159,411)
Lease modification HEEH - 99,251
Exchange realignment PE 5 A% — (228)
At 31 March 2023 RZZE_=F=A=+—H - 244,787
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

16. LEASES (Cont'd) 16. HE(#&)
LEASE LIABILITIES (Cont’d) HEaE#E)
Future lease payments are due as follows: ARBEFEOEEFRAOT
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
31 March 31 March 31 March
2023 2023 2023
BEBERE FIE RE

—EC-=HF —EC-=HF —E-=HE
=A=+—H8 =A=+—H =A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FEx FEx

Not later than one year NER—F 140,084 6,866 133,218
Later than one year and not later BA—EETERME

than two years 80,002 3,311 76,691
Later than two years and not later EBRMEBNERASE

than five years 36,222 1,344 34,878

256,308 11,521 244,787

Minimum

lease Present

payments Interest value

31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 2022 2022

IR EFRIE MR A

—E - —ET-—HF —E-F

—A=+—H =ZA=+—H =ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FAET

Not later than one year TER—F 133,524 3,611 129,913
Later than one year and not later BR—FEDNERME

than two years 79,694 1,420 78,274
Later than two years and not later BERMEETNERNAST

than five years 32,782 300 32,482

246,000 5,331 240,669
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS IR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

16. LEASES (Cont’d)
LEASE LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

The present value of future lease payments are analysed as:

16. HE(#&)

HE&E(E)

RRMEFENREDHTAT

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT
Current liabilities mENEE 133,218 129,913
Non-current liabilities e UN=Er= 111,569 110,756
244,787 240,669
17. INVENTORIES . FE

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHTT
Finished goods BIAK o 244,219 217,969

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES . B EIRFE
2023 2022
—EC_=4HF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT
Trade receivables =) e e 6,139 5,749

Trade receivables mainly represent the outstanding amounts
receivable by the Group from Octopus Cards Limited and
credit card companies. The settlement terms with credit card
companies and octopus card sales are usually within two
business days after the date on which the sales are made. No
credit term has been granted to any customers of the retail
stores.

BHRUFATERARERE/EB A
RABNEERRABRETIE - EHFR
RAEANEBREENGEERBERELH
EERRMELERN - BEATEEHN
EHEERTEES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

8. EZBWFE(E)

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables based on REENZ SERTBENEZOHTEY
invoice date is as follows: BRER DTN T

2023 2022
—EC-=F B —
HK$'000 HK$°000
Fi#5 SR
0-30 days 0&30H 5,779 5,164
31-60 days 31260H 272 160
61-90 days 61290H 53 392
Over 90 days B3890 H 35 33
6,139 5,749

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables based on
due date is as follows:

AEBNE ZRBFRER B ENER

ROMTIT

2023 2022

—EBC-=HF —E-F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FAET

Neither past due nor impaired BR AR 8 BTN R E 5,330 4,721
Not more than 3 months past due EEA R B 3 ME A 774 995
More than 3 months past due # BAER A3 1E A 35 33
6,139 5,749
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

19. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 19. & ~ BARIERHE A EWEK
RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
—EBEC-=F —E_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Non-current: kRS -
Deposits i) 42,560 34,311
Deposits paid for purchase of property, AV - BB REED
plant and equipment iR 944 782
43,504 35,093
Current: e
Prepayments TES IR 24,010 35,412
Deposits e 22,595 30,433
Other receivables E A e Y ERIE 4,394 1,494
50,999 67,339

The balances were unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed #4883 - 2B RV EBETERE - R=F

repayment terms. The Group's deposits and other receivables —=Fx-"F-—F=A=+—01 ' "EENIX
were neither past due nor impaired as at 31 March 2023 and 4 & Efth e U 2R IE BE S 361 HA T SR o
2022.
20. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 20. HERRITHEER
2023 2022
—E—=F —E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Cash at banks RITIR® 140,273 128,854
Cash in hand FHRRE 5,774 1,222
146,047 130,076
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

20. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Cont'd) 20. RERIBITEHEER(E)
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Hong Kong dollars ks 141,957 118,650
Renminbi (“RMB") ARB(TARE]) 1,167 1,361
United States dollars (“US$") E(E V) 319 309
Euro BT 23 34
Macau Pataca ("MOP") R T(RMT)) 2,518 9,654
Other currencies Hh s 63 68
146,047 130,076

The Group had cash and bank balances denominated in RMB ~ AREEHE B AA REHENE € RIBITEHLD
of approximately HK$1,098,000 (2022: HK$1,289,000) and 1,098,000/ 7t (=& = — 4 : 1,289,000/ T) °
the remittance of these funds out of the PRC was subject M2 E & S E LT RAES P RHTE ErIIMNE
to the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC  E %8R °

Government.
21. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 21. IEAEFTEH

The analysis of deferred income tax assets of the Group is as ~ ANEBAPELEMESHREEDHTAT ¢
follows:

2023 2022
—EBE-=F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Deferred income tax assets to be recovered #7838 1218 A & U [E &Y
after more than 12 months RIEFTESREE 2,311 1,516
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS IR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

21. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

Movements in deferred income tax assets of the Group during

the current and prior year are as follows:

21. IEEEFRSBL(E)

RAFE B EFEAREBNRTEHSH

AEBHNT -

Decelerated tax
depreciation

WRBIHITE
HK$'000
FET
As at 1 April 2021 R-ZE-—-FMA—H 1,902
Charged to the consolidated statement of profit ~ sF A&RA B &k EM 2 E RS T
or loss and other comprehensive income (386)
As at 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 N-B-——H=A=+-HK
—E-__FMA—H 1,516
Credited to the consolidated statement of profit st A4r& 18z N EM 2 KRR R
or loss and other comprehensive income 795
As at 31 March 2023 R-B=Z=H=H=+—H 2,311

22. TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS AND OTHER  22.

PAYABLES

(a) Trade payables

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables based

PRI FRIE

(a) EZENARE

BEZRAFEUREBERR A

AEBNE HRNFUAENER A

on invoice date is as follows: SRR STT ¢
2023 2022
—E-=F - F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FET
0-30 days 0£30H 56,564 67,002
31-60 days 31260H 12,296 8,233
61-90 days 61290H - 122
Over 90 days BiAmI0R 66 267
68,926 75,624
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

22. TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS AND OTHER 22. BRENZELUREASSER E/i

PAYABLES (Cont‘d)

FESRRIR (48

(b) Accruals and other payables (b) EXEARHMENRE
2023 2022
—E-=F TE-F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Current: E
Accruals for employee benefit expenses  fEEHE B 18 K| f 2 20,632 17,164
Accruals for rental expenses FERTASRY 5,871 8,714
Accruals for logistic expenses FEETIR IS 6,299 8,222
Contract liabilities in relation to customer ¥ & EER BT 2R
loyalty programme (Note (e)) BHIBEW EE) 640 491
Accruals for property, plant and ERTYIE - BEREEER
equipment 684 192
Contract liabilities in relation to cash WRIReHFHENEE
coupon (Notes (d) and (e)) (Htat(d) R (e) - 25
Provision for reinstatement costs (Note (c)) {E1E8 R B (M1 72(c)) 2,206 1,704
Accruals for operating expenses and JEEHSE R R EHAM
other payables FERIFRIE 5,694 7,604
42,026 44,116
Non-current: e :
Provision for reinstatement costs (Note (c)) {E18 5 A (H172(c)) 1,919 1,942
(c) Provision for reinstatement costs () 1BERFTERE
Movements in the provision for reinstatement costs are as (BIEK A EEEH T
follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F —E - F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
At beginning of year REH] 3,646 3,627
Provision for reinstatement costs {E1E R ARt 699 818
Utilisation of provision for reinstatement &) FR{S 18R A B4
costs (220) (799)
At end of year RER 4,125 3,646
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS IR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

22. TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS AND OTHER  22.

PAYABLES (Cont’d)
(d) Contract liabilities in relation to cash coupon

Movements in the contract liabilities in relation to cash
coupon are as follows:

BEZRMNREURETERR A

SRR (E)

(d) FREEHNENEE

BRAEHFNEHNABESNT

2023 2022

—EC-=F - F

HK$°000 HK$’000

TET FET

At beginning of year REH] 25 312
Issued during the year FREET 18 427
Expired during the year FNEH (31) (44)
Redeemed during the year FRNHBR (12) (670)
At end of year RER - 25

(e) Contract liabilities

The Group has recognised the following revenue related
contract liabilities:

(e) GHERE

AEEEERA MRAEBENRE

2023 2022
—B-=F —F-—

HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT

Contract liabilities in relation to customer ¥ REEEHTEINAHEE
loyalty programme 640 491

Contract liabilities in relation to cash WRIREeHFNEHAE

coupon - 25
640 516

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount
of the transaction price allocated to the performance
obligations that are unsatisfied as of the end of the year.
The Group expects the transaction price allocated to the
unsatisfied performance obligations will be recognised as
revenue when the award points in relation to customer
loyalty programme and the cash coupon are redeemed.

BRREREIEESERFRAREZKDN
BHETHNRZERERE - AKEE
B DEEREFREREHNEEINRS
BRSNS SIMEERD MR
T HE R BN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

22. TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS AND OTHER  22.
PAYABLES (Cont‘d)

(e) Contract liabilities (Cont’d)

The following table shows the revenue recognised in
the current reporting period related to carried-forward

BZBNREURETER Rt
RS FRIE(E)

() BWEEKE)

TRETRAREHCHREIRERE
BRERWA

liabilities:
2023 2022
—EC=HF - F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAET
For the year REE
Revenue recognised that was included in 5t AFFHIA KRB
the contract liabilities at beginning of BHERUA
the year
— Retailing sales —ZE 516 696
The following table shows unsatisfied performance TEREREENWREKRBLHSIT :
obligations resulting from retailing sales:
2023 2022
—B-=F —B-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TETT
At end of year RER
Expected to be recognised within FRHR —F R
one year 640 516
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS IR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

23. BANK BORROWINGS

23. SRITIBERX

2023 2022
—EC=F B —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Current: BNEY
Secured interest-bearing bank borrowings AT BERITER
Repayable within one year BER—FNEE 79,349 82,981

Bank borrowings bear interest at floating interest rates. The RITERREIDANEHE - BEZE =

effective interest rates of bank borrowings is HIBOR plus 1.3% FZRA=1T—HIEFE  RITEFNER

(2022: HIBOR plus 1.3%) per annum for the year ended 31 MELBBBRITRIZFEMFEFE1.3%

March 2023. T F  BERTRAEHRBMENE

1.3%) °

As at 31 March 2023, the bank borrowings and other banking RZZE-=ZF=ZA=+—H  ~AEBERTE

facilities of the Group are secured by: R EAERITREE LA T 5118 B /BT -

() the corporate guarantee provided by the Company and a () ARAEER—FHBRRREMEEE
subsidiary; and ®: &

(i) property, plant and equipment of office premises (i) BEM{E A166,358,0008 (- ==
(Note 15) of the Group with carrying amount of £ : 171,350,000/ 7T ) B9 AN S B 3
HK$166,358,000 (2022: HK$171,350,000). EMERIWE - B Mk (FHEE15) -

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. |
Number Amount
(=] Ex-]
HK$'000
FAT
Authorised: JETE
At 31 March 2022, 1 April 2022 and R-ZE-_—_F#=A=+—8"
31 March 2023 —E-_FOMA—HK
—E-=F=A=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER -
At 31 March 2022, 1 April 2022 and RZBZZF=H=+—H"
31 March 2023 —E-_FMA—HK
—T_=F=A=+—H 1,000,000,000 10,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

25. RESERVES 25. f#f&
Details of the movements of the Group's reserves are as AEBFEBEEDFEANGEEREH R
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. A o NATIREEEENIT ¢

Movement of the Company’s reserves are as follows:

(Accumulated

losses)/
Share retained
premium earnings Total
(REHEBR),
R RE REEF ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FAT FAT
At 1 April 2021 R-ZZE-—FmMA—A 329,284 (223) 329,061
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 & 5% FI % 2 E U ES
for the year fak - 40,627 40,627
Dividend paid BRRE - (40,000) (40,000)
At 31 March 2022 R-Z——
=B=+—~ 329,284 404 329,688
At 1 April 2022 RZZE-—FP/—H 329,284 404 329,688
Profit and total comprehensive income &5 F| & 2 mE S
for the year R - 160,757 160,757
Dividend paid BT E - (160,000) (160,000)
R -=F
At 31 March 2023 =A=1+—H 329,284 1,161 330,445
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

25.

26.

RESERVES (Cont’d)

The following describes the nature and purpose of each
reserve within owners’ equity.

Reserves

Gl

25. (&)

MW ER AN S RN IEE LA
;@ o

Description and purpose

K A&

Share premium

Petniad (8

Other reserve

HAtb

Foreign exchange reserve

SINFEE fek

Retained earnings

Share premium is the excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of
the shares of the Company issued at a premium, less the amount of expenses
incurred in connection with the issue of the shares.

Bt v (B 2 e AN BIAR 19 LA (B 1T IR ER BY P S IR R AR ) B A B8R - 0
HMBRBEITIRIDFTEENFRX

The other reserve of the Group represents the difference between the total
equity of the subsidiaries and the aggregated share capital of the subsidiaries
pursuant to the reorganisation where the transfer of the subsidiaries to the
Company are satisfied by issue of new shares from the Company.

REBEMFERREERSIME R RNEEREEMEBA NG AR
Z5 gl REEEEBHB AR FARR B BARR R EITHAMERX

The foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations whose
functional currencies are different from that of the Group’s presentation
currency.

SN B RERRETEEEE TRNARE 25 G0 INE X I K
THREMELNEN Z5 -

Cumulative net gains and losses recognised in profit or loss.

REEF PRIER AR Rt e R EBIFEE -
COMMITMENTS 26. HiE
Capital commitments BEREE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Commitments for acquisition of property, BEEWZE - KE MR EH)#AE
plant and equipment 681 534
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

e ISR EE

27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

27. DT EEAR R TR

COMPANY
2023 2022
—E-=F T F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE FHET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
Non-current asset IREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary W B ATRIRE 28 122,614 122,614
Current assets REEE
Prepayment TEfRUR 337 309
Amounts due from subsidiaries I EE YNGR O 213,579 215,457
Cash and bank balances B4 MIRITHERS 4,105 1,475
218,021 217,241
Current liability REAE
Accruals and other payables FEETE B N E b e A 190 167
Net assets EERE 340,445 339,688
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of AATEB AELER
the Company
Share capital [N 24 10,000 10,000
Reserves = 25 330,445 329,688
Total equity AL 340,445 339,688
On behalf of the Directors of the Company REAQAES
Lin Tsz Fung Hui Ngai Fan
MRF HFRF
Director Director
EF EF

Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited € f3603Z R B R 2 & 9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

28. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 28. RMB A TR

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023 are RZZEZ=F=RA=+—8 ' ARRNBA

as follows: AFBET
Particulars of
issued and
Country and date of incorporation  fully paid up Attributable equity
Name and form of business structure share capital interests Principal activities
EMBIER - AL ASR BRTR
£ ARRBER BRRARGFE FEfE g TEEHR
Direct Indirect
Ef R
Best Mart 360 International BVI, 23 February 2018, US$1 100% - Investment holding in BVI
Limited limited liability company
Bm360BIEBRAT REgARME —E-\§ZA 157 EEBERRMEN
Z+=R BRAF RAER
Quality Food 360° (Holdings) BVI, 25 April 2013, Us$2 - 100%  Investment holding in BVI
Limited limited liability company
Em360" Rm(£E)BRAA] ERSERRESR :E*,iﬂﬁ ET ERBER RSN
ZTRBBRAR REER
Best Mart 360 Macau Holdings BVI, 14 March 2019, Us$1 - 100%  Investment holding in BVI
Limited limited liability company
Bm3c0RMERERA REERARNE —E-N%ZA B EEBERRMEN
THE - ERAF RAER
Best Mart 360 China Holdings BVI, 8 November 2019, Us$1 - 100%  Investment holding in BVI
Limited limited liability Company
Bm360F ElERAR AR KBERREE —S-N\F+-8 1Exn ERBERR BN
NB - ERAA REER
CIAO International Limited Hong Kong, 14 December 2012, HK$20,000 - 100%  Retailing of food and beverage,
limited liability company household and personal care
VEERER AR B “F-—F+-ATRA 20,0007 products under the “Best
BRAF Mart 360°" (& %360°) brand
stores in Hong Kong and
wholesaling in Hong Kong
TEB 7 ( Best Mart 360°
(BMR360°) | RIIEE
ETRANIS KR
REAERERSER
EERETHE
Best Mart 360 Hong Kong Hong Kong, 25 November 2019, HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding in
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
Bm360EEBR AR BE ZE-NET-AZTREC AR EEENRERR

ARAR

Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited & ®360ZE R ER 2 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B R TR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

28. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 28. RMIB AR (&)
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023 are RZZEZ=F=A=+—8  XRRWBA
as follows: (Cont’d) FEBMT : (&)
Particulars of
issued and
Country and date of incorporation  fully paid up Attributable equity
Name and form of business structure share capital interests Principal activities
EMAELER SRR AHR BRTR
£ NAREER BRBRAGE FEfE g TEEHR
Direct Indirect
HE R
Best Mart 360 Macau Limited Macau, 21 May 2019, MOP25,000 - 100%  Retailing of food and beverage,
limited liability company household and personal care
Bm360RFIBRAR B ZZ-nEFRAZT-R/ 25,0002197 products under the “Best
ERAT Mart 360°" (f&:360°)
brand store in Macau
TE2P[Best Mart 360°
(Bm360") | RIEESR

EIRREAG 5B
REAEEERTE

Shenzhen Best Mart 360 The PRC, 24 December 2019, HK$14,000,000 - 100%  Retailing of food and beverage,
Commerce Limited a wholly foreign-owned enterprise household and personal care
REREHESEEERAA HE ZF-NETZAZTMA S 14,000,000 7T products under the “Best
HEELR Mart 360°" (f£a360°)

brand store in Shenzhen
- 100%  7ER3I Best Mart 360°

(Bm360°) Ik

ETRGBEER  FF

rANEEERTE
Abundant Year International Limited ~ BVI, 28 April 2020, HK$8 - 100%  Investment holding in BVI
limited liability Company
AFERERAR AEEBRES _7_1%)% 8B EEBERRESNREER
Z+N\R - BRAR
Allied Wide Limited Hong Kong, 28 October 2010, HK$3 - 100%  Property holding in Hong Kong
limited liability company
LA AT A CT-EETACTAR 3BT ERBNRENE
ARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

28. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 28. RMIB A RIRER (&)
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023 are RZZEZ=F=RA=+—8 ' ARRNBA
as follows: (Cont’d) FEBMT : (&)
Particulars of
issued and
Country and date of incorporation  fully paid up Attributable equity
Name and form of business structure share capital interests Principal activities
EMBIER « R ASR BRTR
£ NAREER BRRARE Fedt k18 TERH
Direct Indirect
B R
Golden Good International Trading ~ Hong Kong, 26 May 2022, limited HK$1 - 100%  Wholesales of food and
Limited liability company beverage, household and
LEERESBRAF B —S-FRACTAA 1% personal care products under
BRAT the "Best Mart 360°" brand
store in Hong Kong
{EB V5[ Best Mart 360°

(Bm360") i BT
RmB#m - KEREAZ

BEmE
29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 2. BERRS
(a) Related party transactions () BEAIRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in this consolidated financial BRAGEVBRREMEMEES
statements, the Group had the following material AN - FRREEEREER B THEARR
transactions with related parties during the year: 2
Name of related parties Nature of transaction 2023 2022
B AR REMHE —ED=F T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FAT
Giant Fame Corporation Limited Lease payment N/A 800
("Giant Fame") (Note (i) RiEH
Besa AR AT ([ BE8E 1) (A7a3)) MEIE
Smart Essence Development Limited Lease payment 1,071 910
("Smart Essence”) (Note (ii)
RIEFRBR AR RE ] (HZ0)) MEIE
1,071 1,710

82 Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited & ®360ZE R ER 2 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Related party transactions (Cont’d)

Notes:

(i) Giant Fame was controlled by Mr Lin, one of the directors of the
Company. On 20 January 2022, Mr. Lin has disposed all equity
interests held in Giant Fame to an independent third party of the
Group, and Giant Fame ceased to be a related party of the Group.

(i)~ Mr. Lin, one of the directors of the Company, has significant

influence over Smart Essence.
Compensation of key management personnel
Remuneration for key management personnel of the

Group, including amounts paid to the executive directors
of the Company as disclosed in Note 11(a), is as follows:

29.

BERRS (&)
(a) BERXRS(E)
Hisz -
() BESAEAATBEMELLS o B
F—A=+A  HREEEAAEE— LB
B=H R ERBRIHE OB - 5

HABRAASEIORERT

(i)  ARBREEMECELREREEATES

(b) ETEEEASHMH

REBMEBEEABNHMN(BIENE
M@ BEECNARRATRITEENS
)T

2023 2022

—E-=F B —

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTExT FAET

Directors’ fees EEWE - -
Short-term benefits KEHATE A 9,341 9,659
Discretionary bonuses [ EREFAN 1,295 950
Post-employment benefits BERL R 144 156
10,780 10,765
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

30. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 30. ZERE T HNETREEREREE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY =
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial assets at amortised cost SRIEE (REHEBEALR)
Trade receivables B 5 [EWGRIA 6,139 5,749
Deposits and other receivables & K EH A fEI IR 69,549 66,238
Cash and bank balances e RRITHERR 146,047 130,076
221,735 202,063
2023 2022
—E-=F TE-F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTExT FAT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost SRBEGRBHEAEAR)
Trade payables B Sl EE 68,926 75,624
Accruals and other payables FERTE R R E A ERT IR 39,286 42,358
Bank borrowings HRITER 79,349 82,981
Lease liabilities HEAE 244,787 240,669
432,348 441,632
The directors of the Company considers the carrying value of RRBEEFRACHTAMNERIMERELAT
financial instruments approximates their fair value. BEHEE -

8 Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited & ®360ZE R ER 2 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
in the normal course of the Group's business are credit risk,
liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk.

These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management
policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is the
carrying amounts of cash and bank balances, and trade
and other receivable. The Group has no concentration of
credit risk from third party debtors.

As at 31 March 2023, substantially all of the Group’s
bank deposits were deposited with major financial
institutions in Hong Kong, which management believes
are of high-credit-quality without significant credit risk.

All of the Group’s trade receivables and other receivables
have no collateral. The Group assessed the credit
quality of the counterparties by taking into account
their financial position, credit history and other factors.
Management also regularly reviews the recoverability of
these receivables and follow up the disputes or amounts
overdue, if any. The Directors are of the opinion that the
risk of default by counterparties is low.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.

31.

IR B

RASBEREBERTELBAEESR
TANTERARAEERR  RBHESHA
B SNES R e M R LR o

% BB ST SR A ) 7 R (B B 7 TR IR R
K ABHIFBR I -

(@) FERR

AEBFEERRBAEYNRSARS
BRERRES RIRITEBARE S R E
R FIRRARE(E - A% B &K E
F=HEBANEEETRER

RIZE-_=F=ZA=+—H  AEER
REBDRITER T ERRERERER
EREEERATERYEAEERR
NBEBEZ SRR -

REREIPTE E 5 R WEIA R E A IR
RHEERR - AKREZBHFTHM
Bk~ EELBEEEMEE - ARHRE
HEEER ERENEPRAZERE
WORIBE R EIF2E - I ERAE S k8
HREE) - EFERE - HFHME
HRBIRIE -

AEBENIGEREERGE RN
aEt - AN EREHHETHEER
BAEBREEM - HHEEERRES
BREEI - ARE/EERRE A%
HEAN R BN HER B HHELD
RBETTHLER - AEEEEERIBHNE
B R AR IEE R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
(@) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(i) Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
providing for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for all trade receivables. The Group always
measures the loss allowance for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The ECL on
trade receivables is estimated by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and current market
condition in relation to each debtor’s exposure. The
ECL also incorporates forward-looking information
with reference to general macroeconomic
conditions that may affect the ability of the debtors
to settle receivables. To measure the ECL, the trade
receivables have been grouped based on share
credit risk characteristics and the days past due
according to the ageing as disclosed in note 18.
Expected loss rate of current trade receivables are
assessed to be 0.1% as the trade receivables mainly
represent amounts due from Octopus Cards Limited
and credit card companies with high credit rating
and no history of default. For the past due trade
receivables, due to the balances were immaterial,
the management of the Group considered the
loss allowance provision for these balances were
immaterial. There is no change in the ECL rate for
trade receivables during the years mainly due to
no significant change in the historical default rates
of trade receivables based on which the ECL rate
is determined. The management of the Group
considered the loss allowance provision for trade
receivables was immaterial during the year ended
31 March 2023 (2022: immaterial).

31. I ERERE(E)

(a)

FERRGE)

()

€. 1.¢/ ¢

AEBERBEHREEBENRE
REABE AU WELERE IR
FIAMR S % - R EREF Y
FIBE S EWFIBHAZETER
BERE - AEEMFENES
FEWFIENBERERNTERSE
REHEHREEEE2E -BS
JERRIBN B EEBEIZE
EREBANBTEOLERE
ZEBARZBEREOERT
BRI E - BEIEE BRI
ERAELEER ER2EAYH
B AL W IER 8L NI AK
FENEBRBREBLBERR o BT
SEEHEEEE  BSEWHRIE
THIZ PR FE 18 AT 52 MO BR R i AR
BHAREERR SRS EBRE
EITHE BN EZERKKIEE
ZRAEBRN\ERRERAFARSE
ERRRAR(BHEARIEESEE
STAR R R 4040 8% ) RO FRIE - 1
BVERE 5 FE UL 5K T8 /) T8 HA B 1 R
TiEHE A0.1% - S B E B E UK
HIEME @ RGBT TEKX -
WMAKBEEEERABZEEHRD
EIEBHTRITEKN - FFR
B SR FIBENEREEBEX
WEEE  RERETEHEE
EEEMIKBENE 5 EKFKIER
FEOEWWMERNES) - NEE
ERERE  BHEUGIBENE
BRETRREE S -_=F=
A=T—HILEFEALTER(Z
TZZF PEK) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(@) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(ii) Other receivables

As at 31 March 2023, the management of the
Group takes into account the historical default
experience and forward-looking information, as
appropriate, for example the Group considers
the consistently low historical default rates
of counterparties, and concludes that credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding other
receivables is insignificant. The management of
the Group has assessed that other receivables do
not have a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and risk of default is insignificant,
therefore the ECL for these receivables were
immaterial under the 12 months expected loss
method and no loss allowance was recognised
during the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and long term. The management of the Company
is satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full its
financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future in the normal course of business.
The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period of
the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payment computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on the current rates at the reporting date) and the
earliest date the Group may be required to pay.

31. I EREE(E)

(a)

(b)

FERRGE)

(i) HtERFE

RZBE-_=ZF#=ZA=+—H ' &
EREEERBRAERBAELN
EERATEEER - BEIME -
AEEZEEHFIHNBTENE
SERE  UELHERRAELNE
(= [ R 455 0) H Ath B GRIB ) &
EEERBIETEE - AEEE
BEDHTHMERRENEE
[E. % B )56 T 52 LA SR N 4 & 45
MEEXNRBRIYTEE - Al
ZERWRIBENBREEEER
BI2EATERERELTEKX
WHRBE_E_=F=A=+—
BIEFEATEERBERE(Z
ToTFE) e

RBETER

ARENBRRETHERERBDESH
Ko DAREREL MR R IR S W (LT
NHEHLRERARDESHFR - ARF]
EEEEMNASERENELRERB
TR ETTER A A5 B HI R B B 75
Aff - TRALAKESRE BN SR
SHARNBTEOREA - ADERE
MARMBRBSRE(BRERAEHOFE
SHE (AT E) IR E B R E AT
KEHE R BN ) KA K E R BRI
RHHF A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

(b) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

31. I ERERE(E)

(b) RBEEZRR(E)

Total

contractual Within Within Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or 1 year to 2 years to
amount  cashflow ondemand 2 years 5 years

BHRER 1R
FEE HERELE EEX 15226R 25E5%R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THER TiEn TR

At 31 March 2023 R-B-=£=A=+-H
Trade payables BHERTE 68,926 68,926 68,926 = =
Accruals and other payables  FEZH 2B R EfENFIE 39,286 39,286 39,286 - -
Bank borrowings RITER 79,349 114,161 6,709 26,336 80,616
Lease liabilities HEAE 244,787 256,308 140,084 80,002 36,222
432,348 478,681 255,005 106,838 116,838
Total

contractual Within Within Within
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or 1 year to 2 years to
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years

BHIAREHR 15/
REE ReNELR B2k 1FEFA 25ESER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT T T TAL

At 31 March 2022 R-E--%=A=1+-A

Trade payables BHERTE 75,624 75,624 75,624 - -
Accruals and other payables  FEZH 2B R EfEN A 42,358 42,358 42,358 - -
Bank borrowings RITRER 82,981 108,226 5,870 23,481 78,875
Lease liabilities HEAE 240,669 246,000 133,524 112,476 -
441,632 472,208 257,376 135,957 78,875
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

(9)

(d)

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operated in Hong Kong with most
of the transactions settled in HK$ and did not have
significant exposure to risk resulting from changes in
foreign currency exchange rates.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates
principally to its bank deposits and interest-bearing bank
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. The Group
has not entered into any financial derivative instruments
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The Group’s
policy is to manage its interest rate risk, working within
an agreed framework, to ensure that there are no unduly
exposures to significant interest rate movements.

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s financial instruments at the end of each
reporting period:

31. I EREE(E)

()

(d)

SN LB

FEBEEREBELLY - HAHS
RGAETTHER - B EEEEINEIE
FHBTIBNEARR -

M=k

AEBEmE O @ T REERTF
RNETRIRTTIERAR - A B %
HEER S AEBEEHR S REN KR,
R o NEBWEAT T ERESRITETA
AR E MR AR - AEBNBERR
SR EIESREIEE AR R - PARESR
TEAXBRNEANXEBER -

TEEMAEEMIANEHEDRF
BRI,

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F

Effective Effective

interest rate interest rate
per annum HK$'000 per annum HK$'000
BERER= FTHELT EBRFNX FET
Fixed-rate bank deposits B FIRIFITER 3.93% 105,000 - -
Floating-rate bank deposits FENFEIFITER —* 4,843 —* 30,693

Floating-rate bank overdrafts FEBMERITER

and borrowings 2.88% (79,349) 1.61% (82,981)

* The effective interest rate per annum is lower than 0.01%.

* BEBRFFEER0.01% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IS IR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &2 —F - =%#=H=1—HI F/E

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
(d) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis

At the respective end of each reporting period, it is
estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease the Group’s profit for the year
ended 31 March 2023 by approximately HK$622,000

(2022: HK$437,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined to
assume that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of each reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for the bank deposits
and interest-bearing bank overdrafts and borrowings
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the next

twelve months period.

The interest rate risk policies have been followed by the

Group consistently throughout the years.

31. I ERERE(E)

(d) R=mpE)

BBETHT

REREER - MFIRBEEEH T
FE100 B E R - MATHE HAL B E T
2 e r e @REE S ==
FZA=T—HLEFEMNRMEDL
622,000/ 7C( —FE = —4F : 437,0007
TT) °

BRBRRE DI TR R REBHE R
BMEPRELE - YVEEARZAGTAE
HERTTIF B AT BRITRER A A R E R
MEEE o L7k T 100EES HE R
ESMIERRARE A+ —E A BB S 2 A]
REE{LHORTAY -

i
]

RERFE —EBENEREBER

Bt
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &% —F =% =H=1—HIFF&Z

32. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objective when managing capital is to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and maximising the return to stakeholders. The Group’s capital
structure is regularly reviewed and managed by the directors of
the Company. The Group is not subject to externally imposed
capital requirements. To maintain or adjust capital structure,
the Group may adjust dividend payment to shareholders or
issue new shares. Adjustments will be made to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting
the Company or its subsidiaries, and the risk characteristics of
the Group’s underlying assets.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
includes the bank borrowings, lease liabilities, cash and bank
balance and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital and reserves. The Group's risk
management reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As part of this review, the management considers the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital.

The net debt to equity ratio as at the reporting dates is as
follows:

32.

BEXEE

AEFEREANEERERMGESSE#
BRPSEEEEELENEE N  YRARE
MWRRNEGFRER - AEENEARBE
AAREE TR RERE - AEBEAZI
A BEARERMARR - REFHNHARE
RIE - ARE A RAERRRRM RS
BT - HEARBHELOFHEHER
AR A B S E I B R AR R A B IR
SR MASERBEENRBRTEIEL o

AEBENEARBREER (EHBHEIRT
fE5%)  MERE  RERRTEHRRARQ
BIEA ARG (BN R F#E) -
AEENRBEREESFFRa —REAR
B ERUtRE 8D  EEBEEEAR
A IA R SRS SR E A FERR RV R

RS BRI RS I T

2023 2022

—EC=HF T

HK$'000 HK$'000

F&T BT

Bank borrowings HRITIER 79,349 82,981
Lease liabilities HERE 244,787 240,669
Less: Cash and bank balances IR MIRTTEE R (146,047) (130,076)
Net debt FE 178,089 193,574
Total equity Bl 478,712 438,043
Net debt to equity ratio FES YR 37.2% 44.2%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B RR MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

33. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

33.

HmeReRERM

n

MEEBELENABNHE

Non-cash changes
FRe%E

Year ended Be-E-cE Asat Financing Interest Lease Exchange Asat
31 March 2023 ZAZT-HLEE  1Apil2022 cash flow Addition expenses  modification  realignment 31 March 2023
R=g== RoB-zZf
MA-B @ERERE HE R HEBY EX@% =B=1-A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tén Tén Thn Tin Tén Tin
Bank borrowings g 82,981 (3632) = = = = 79,349
Lease liabilities fEag 240,669 (159,411) 57,642 6,864 99,251 (228) 204,787
323,650 (163,043) 57,642 6,864 99,251 (228) 324,136

Non-cash changes

FREEY

Year ended RS Sk As at Financing Interest Lease Exchange As at
31 March 2022 SAZT-AIEERE 1 Api 2021 cash flow Addition expenses  modification  realignment 31 March 2022
S S
MA-A BERGRE hE FISFR HEEH EREE  =A=1-A
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TER TER TER
Bank borrowings RTER 107,496 (24,515) - - - - 82,981
Other payables HibENTE 16 (1432) - 1416 - - -
Lease liabilities HEARE 236,405 (174,803) 158,070 5893 15,045 59 240,669
343917 (200,750) 158,070 7309 15,045 59 323,650
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